
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Health & Wellbeing Board 
Agenda 

 

Tuesday 13 December 2022 at 6.00 pm 
Online - Virtual Meeting 

 

Watch live on YouTube: www.youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham 

 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Councillor Ben Coleman (Chair) - Deputy Leader and  
Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care  
Dr James Cavanagh – H&F GP  
Carleen Duffy - Healthwatch H&F  
Dr Nicola Lang - Director of Public Health, LBHF  
Phillipa Johnson - Director, Integrated Care Partnership, and Director of Operations for 
Central London Community Health Trust  
Jacqui McShannon - Strategic Director of Children’s Services  
Lisa Redfern - Strategic Director of Social Care, LBHF  
Sue Roostan - Borough Director, H&F, Borough Based Partnership  
Councillor Alexandra Sanderson – Cabinet Member for Children and Education  
Sue Spiller - Chief Executive Officer, SOBUS  
Detective Inspector Luxan Thurairatnasingam - Met Police  
 
Nominated Deputy Members  
Councillor Natalia Perez, Chair, Health, Inclusion and Social Care Policy and  
Accountability Committee  
Helen Rowbottom, Chair of Children and Education Policy and  
Accountability Committee  
Nadia Taylor – Healthwatch, H&F 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Bathsheba Mall 

Committee Coordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 07776672816 
 E-mail: bathsheba.mall@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees 
 
 
 

Date Issued: 5 December 2022 

http://www.youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Health & Wellbeing Board 
Agenda 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

 If a Member of the Board, or any other member present in the meeting 
has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, whether or not it 
is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any other significant 
interest which they consider should be declared in the public interest, 
they should declare the existence and, unless it is a sensitive interest as 
defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature of the interest at the 
commencement of the consideration of that item or as soon as it 
becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Member with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Member must then 
withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is discussed 
and any vote taken.  
 
Where members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Members who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Members are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards 
Committee.   
 

 

3.   MINUTES AND ACTIONS  
 

4 - 14 

 (a) To approve as an accurate record and the Chair to sign the 
minutes of the meeting of the Health & Wellbeing Board held on 
Wednesday, 21 September 2022; and 

 
(b) To note the outstanding actions. 

 
 

 

4.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 If you would like to participate by submitting a question please email 
bathsheba.mall@lbhf.gov.uk by 12pm, 12 December 2022.  

 

mailto:bathsheba.mall@lbhf.gov.uk


 

5.   BETTER CARE FUND  
 

15 - 53 

 To note the delegated decision to agree the Better Care Fund 
agreement.  
 

 

6.   HOSPITAL DISCHARGE FUND 2022/23 
  

54 - 57 

 To note receipt of the Discharge Grant from NHS England.  
 

 

7.   INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM AND H&F CARE PARTNERSHIP 
POLICY CONTEXT  
 

58 - 62 

 The Board will explore the current governance structures and how the 
Integrated Care Board works with local borough-based partnerships to 
achieve excellent health and social care across North West London. 
 

 Introductions by the Chair, Councillor Ben Coleman and Rob 
Hurd, Chief Executive Officer, Integrated Care System 

 Local Delivery and Health Campaigns 

 Resident Involvement In Health & Care Partnership, H&F 
 
 

 

8.   WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 

 To discuss board’s work programme for 2022/23.  
 

 

9.   DATES OF NEXT MEETING  
 

 

 Tuesday, 14 March 2023  



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

.   
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Health & Wellbeing Board 
 Draft Minutes 

 

Wednesday 21 September 2022 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members:  
Councillor Ben Coleman, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Health and 
Social Care, Chair 
Dr Nicola Lang - Director of Public Health, LBHF  
Phillipa Johnson - Director, Integrated Care Partnership, and Director of Operations 
for Central London Community Health Trust  
Jacqui McShannon – Strategic Director of Children’s Services 
Lisa Redfern - Strategic Director of Social Care, LBHF  
Sue Roostan - Borough Director, H&F  
Councillor Alexandra Sanderson – Cabinet Member for Children and Education  
 
Nominated Deputies Councillors:  
Natalia Perez, Chair, Health, Inclusion and Social Care Policy and Accountability 
Committee  
Helen Rowbottom, Chair of Children and Education Policy and Accountability 
Committee  
Nadia Taylor, Healthwatch, H&F 
 
Councillors in attendance:  
Liz Collins 
Rebecca Harvey - Cabinet Member for Social Inclusion and Community Safety 
Genevie Nwaogbe - Deputy Whip (Labour) 
Patricia Quigley - Lead Member for Inclusive Community Engagement and Co-
production (V)* 
 
Officers:    
Nicola Ashton, Strategic commissioner, Health and Social Care, H&F 
Jo Baty, Assistant Director Assistant director specialist support and independent 
living, Social Care, H&F 
 
*(V) joined the meeting virtually 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Carleen Duffy and James 
Cavanagh. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

3. MINUTES AND ACTIONS  
 
Two corrections were reported, the inclusion of Councillor Helen Rowbottom 
as an attendee and that under officers, Dr Ashlee Mulimba was from Healthy 
Dialogues Ltd and not Healthy “Diagnostics”: 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 29 June 2022 were agreed 
as a correct record.  
 
Matters arising 
 
Dr Nicola Lang confirmed that the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JNSA) 
information factsheet link had been circulated to Board members with access 
to a dedicated JNSA for H&F hub. Dr Lang confirmed that in respect of 
Agenda Item 4, Vaccines, a draft paper on immunisations had been prepared 
for a future meeting. The development of future item on childhood 
immunisation and vaccination for older children was also discussed, for 
inclusion in the agenda for the next meeting, if appropriate. 
 

4. COVID, POLIO AND MONEY POX VACCINATION  
 
Covid and flu vaccination 
Dr Lang and Sue Roostan gave a joint presentation beginning with an update 
as to the current covid rate which was 32 per 100,000.  Sue Roostan outlined 
details of the NHS autumn booster campaign which launched on 5 September 
and for which the predominant vaccine was the Moderna bivalent vaccine for 
adults, followed by Pfizer for the primary course in line with the Joint Council 
for Vaccination and Immunisation 1-9 categories.  The eligibility criteria 
prioritised those at clinical risk and their household members.   
 
The initial roll out of the campaign focused on care home residents and this 
would be opened to wider groups (over 75+) from 12 September.  Booking 
would be through the national booking system, and it was confirmed that no 
hubs would be established with vaccine delivery largely delivered through 
community pharmacies as part of the primary care offer. The Northwest 
London roving team would be taking referrals to undertake visits to the 
housebound as a priority.  A lower offer was in place from the Primary Care 
Network (PCN) and it was reported that some GP practices were keen to co-
administer covid and flu vaccines, although the latter might not be available 
until about October.   
 
Central London Community Healthcare NHS Trust (CLCH) and 
homelessness teams were working with PCN sites to consider setting up 
clinics from hostels and these would be operational shortly. The media 
campaign had been intentionally low coverage in part because of the current 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

mourning period, however there was likely to be local coverage through GP 
practices.  Pharmacies were also offering walk in slots. 
 
It was reported that the main vaccine for paediatric groups aged 5 to 11 years 
and 12 to 17 years would be Pfizer, the latter would be in accordance with the 
eligibility criteria, but Moderna would be the main vaccine offer.  Touching on 
the booking system, Sue Roostan confirmed that messaging would steer 
people to the national booking site and that this would also be promoted 
through individual GP practices with the recommendation to wait until called.  
 
Councillor Coleman enquired if the roll out would include prisons and 
referenced Dr Lang’s ground breaking approached which had influenced a 
change in national policy.  It was recognised that mistrust issues remained, 
and the council continued to work closely with local community groups such 
as football clubs to build trust.  
 
Councillor Alex Sanderson asked about whether the AstraZeneca vaccine 
would be available, and Sue Roostan confirmed that this was unlikely.  
 
Jacqui McShannon asked if children’s care homes and vulnerable children in 
schools would also be prioritised as part of the roll out.  Sue Roostan 
explained that these would be included along with care homes, and those 
who were housebound if they were registered as such with their GP practice 
or had been referred to the Northwest roving team.  Dr Lang reported that 
staff at schools such as Jack Tizard, The Haven and Q House were eligible 
as they provided personal care. There was an anomaly within the NHS as 
they did not recognise Ofsted registered care. It was explained that a letter 
from Peter Haylock, Operational Director for Education and SEND and Alison 
Markwell, Head of SEND Partnership (a joint health and local authority 
appointment and designated clinical officer for responsibilities for children with 
disabilities) would shortly be sent advocating for the need to prioritise staff 
based in social care settings and providing personal care for children.   
  
Co-optee Nadia Taylor queried why a carer could not be vaccinated at the 
same time as the person being cared for and that this was a concern that had 
routinely been reported to Healthwatch. Sue Roostan explained that the 
intention was to return to business as usual in delivering health services and 
that she would welcome further discussion about this following the meeting.  
Sue Spiller enquired about the population rate of those that had refused 
vaccination, the issue of vaccine hesitancy and prioritising vaccination for 
volunteers who worked with vulnerable groups. It was premature to identify 
any data patterns between the previous take up and the current one, although 
if the latter was lower a more focused messaging would be considered.  Sue 
Roostan confirmed that the first vaccine dose was still being offered and 
acknowledged hesitancy remained a concern.  
 
Councillor Rebecca Harvey reported incidents of antivaxxers approaching 
Black and Asian minority ethnic people in Shepherds Bush with the intent to 
dissuade them from being vaccinated.  Councillor Coleman asked what the 
outcome would be if people did not get vaccinated this winter.  Sue Roostan 
explained that Covid was still active and there were currently patients in 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

hospitals and in intensive care units being treated for Covid.  Sue Roostan 
was unable to offer clinical advice but explained that vaccines were being 
adjusted to reflect the latest variants.  Dr Lang commented that some people 
held entrenched views about vaccination but that the viral confluence of both 
flu and Covid would exacerbate the impact and that the NHS was also 
concerned about lower seasonal flu rates in 2020-21 which might that there 
might be significantly higher rates than usual in the coming winter season.   
 
Councillor Coleman asked what the messaging about Covid vaccination 
should be.  Dr Lang explained that the message was that Covid would be 
more a way of life and Sue Roostan added that being vaccinated increased 
individual protection. Covid protection could be increased through regular 
vaccine boosters but with different variants being identified yearly the vaccine 
bivalent would change.  Delivery of vaccine supplies would be co-ordinated 
through a national system based on the previous year’s uptake.   
 
Councillor Sanderson queried the level of supplies to those practices citing 
the north / south of the borough variation in take up, and about the timing of 
vaccine supply deliveries.  Sue Roostan clarified that level and timing of the 
supply would vary but only the number of doses was linked to the previous 
year’s uptake.  Dr Lang added that there was underordering of vaccines in the 
borough to avoid wastage.  There was now greater interest in vaccination and 
flu coverage was increasing slightly but her focus was on having 
conversations about nursing homes and how a sea change of behaviour 
amongst nursing home staff could be encouraged.  Consistently low coverage 
for flu vaccines amongst both residents and carers and this had been a long-
term concern.  Lisa Redfern acknowledged that further development work 
was required with care homes and confirmed that this would be raised with 
the Integrated Care System (ICS).  
 
Councillor Patricia Quigley commented that patient records needed to be 
more easily accessible within a linked system.  She asked how an accurate 
vaccine record could be maintained if appointments were walk in.  Sue 
Roostan confirmed that these would be recorded through a national booking 
system with the data was notified via the Foundry record system. 
 
Referencing the council’s website and the importance of communicating 
messages so that people understood the impact on NHS services if they were 
not vaccinated, Councillor Coleman reported that the webpages required 
updating to provide information about what pharmacies were able to deliver 
and to coordinate this with information on the NHS and GP practice websites.  
Sue Roostan confirmed that borough-based partnership communications 
team could link up with the council’s communications team to address this.   
 
Councillor Helen Rowbottom asked if it was possible to establish an incentive-
based structure for pharmacies to encourage flu vaccine take up, so for 
example, in high street pharmacies such as Boots may not have had 
sufficient incentive to promote its availability and could co-administer both 
vaccines. Sue Roostan stated that co-administering the flu vaccine with a 
covid vaccination was an option, providing the individual was eligible. 
Councillor Coleman queried this and recounted that he had not been offered 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

the opportunity to have the flu vaccine at the same time as his Covid jab and 
pointed out that pharmacies should offer individuals a choice.  Councillor 
Rowbottom felt that people weighed up the choice of a painful reaction to one 
or both vaccines and try to avoid disruption.  Exploring the immunological 
response and the variation in a person's immunity Dr Lang explained that 
people responded differently to vaccination, and it was a matter of personal 
choice to have vaccines co-administered.  Some care homes for example co-
administered with one vaccine in each arm, which was more about efficiency 
and convenience.  Councillor Coleman sought clarification about this and 
whether pharmacies should be encouraged to co-administer Covid and flu 
vaccines.  Nadia Taylor recounted her elderly parents’ personal experiences, 
who were encouraged to accept co-administration as this was convenient.  
Both parents suffered severe reactions.  She was concerned that her parents 
felt that they had little choice with no indication as to the evidence supporting 
co-administration and so this issue needed to be further explored.  
  
Polio  
Dr Lang explained that testing had detected the polio virus in the sewage 
water of 8 London Boroughs and that there was currently a catch-up 
campaign underway to have the first take up if they have not had it 
(dependent on age) or a booster dose of the polio vaccine.  Children who 
were aged 1-4 years could go to their local GP practice, and children aged 5 
to 9 years would go to the mass vaccination sites located in north London 
(King Street). 
 
Councillor Sanderson enquired about the percentage of children that had 
received a first dose or booster dose of the polio vaccine, broken down by 
age and cohort.  Dr Lang explained that she was awaiting this data. 
Anecdotally, she was aware from Dr Jenna Cumberbatch that there was good 
interest in take up. Councillor Coleman explained that he had previously 
found it very helpful to have data on Covid take up and requested similar data 
on flu, and polio vaccine take up.  Sue Roostan explained that polio vaccine 
data could not be sourced through Foundry due to algorithm issues with the 
system and difficulties in capturing the data as the polio vaccine was a 
component of a range of vaccines, so it was harder to extract that specific 
data and to break this down up to 5 years age.  The discussion explored the 
value of identifying trend patterns in the data using socioeconomic and ethnic 
backgrounds.  Dr Lang was keen to see if local work to raise awareness and 
encourage take up was having the sought-for impact. 
 
Following a question from Councillor Rowbottom, Dr Lang confirmed that the 
only cases of polio had been reported in New York and Israel, and none so 
far in the UK.   
 
Councillor Perez enquired what would happen to children who had not been 
vaccinated.  Dr Lang explained that if they were aged 9 and over they would 
be encouraged go to the GP but there was no “wrong” age at which the polio 
vaccine could be administered. 
 
Councillor Rowbottom asked why childhood immunisations and vaccines 
were not delivered in schools.  Dr Lang explained that schools had only ever 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

undertaken administration of a particular type of meningitis vaccine together 
with one for cervical cancer protection.  The BCG vaccine was no longer 
routinely administered in schools as this was not affective.  The H&F Learning 
Partnership had offered schools an opportunity to participate in a pilot project 
to improve uptake.  Jacqui McShannon cautioned that antivaxxers had 
targeted schools in the borough regarding Covid vaccination and that this had 
been problematic.  Increasingly, parents were more inclined to ask questions 
regardless of recommended guidance.  
 
Monkey Pox 
Dr Lang reported that there had been a declined in Monkey Pox infection 
rates and this was largely attributed to the vaccination was working well but 
this was not certain.  It was confirmed that messaging and raising awareness 
was being channelled through specialist charities nationally.  The impact of 
diverting services to support the programme of Monkey Pox vaccination and 
treatment was discussed.  There was a concern that this had displaced usual 
activities and treatment services and that this would lead to further pressure 
on capacity and the delivery of sexually transmitted disease services.  
 
A suggestion from Councillor Rowbottom was to build evidenced based 
resilience into service provision.  Dr Lang explained that these were services 
that were commissioned by the local authority rather than the NHS. The 
pressures on local authority commissioning resulted from a lack of funding 
and increased resourcing could help build resilience into the service as 
suggested, to allow it deal with unanticipated pressures such Covid and 
Monkey Pox. The NHS was already trying to build stronger systems, for 
example, the established Covid roving teams had pivoted to respond to 
Monkey Pox.   
 
Councillor Coleman asked if low resilience in NHS services was a concern in 
H&F, or if it had been raised by other directors of public health.  Dr Lang 
responded that it was of local interest as the sexual health service in Chelsea 
and Westminster NHS Foundation Trust was a centre of excellence.  
However, there was also a wider interest in ensuring that the NHS services 
were resilient.  Had the local authority’s continued work with CLCH on Covid 
vaccination for homeless people not been in place, services would not have 
been as resilient.  Philippa Johnson commented that local authorities and 
NHS organisations were under resourced, facing difficult winter pressures, 
with a tired workforce. The task of the borough-based partnership was to 
identify and prioritise the services with most demand and what could be 
achieved within the allocated resources.  Responding to Councillor 
Rowbottom’s point on weighing up priorities Sue Roostan explained that this 
required services to be refocused.  If services could not be accessed, then 
people were encouraged to contact NHS 111.  
 
Councillor Coleman reported a concern raised by the directors of social care 
of the eight north west London boroughs who had written to Robert Hurd, 
chief executive of the ICS about additional winter pressures funding which 
other ICSs had provided.  Phillipa Johnson explained that the key was to 
ensure joint planning to utilise winter funding and to work through the 
additional pressure on beds by working together in partnership.  

Page 9



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
ACTIONS: 

1. To find out how and when those working in health and social care 
provision, and in particular, staff working in school settings supporting 
children with learning disabilities, could be prioritised for vaccination, 
and the response to copied to Councillor Alex Sanderson. 

2. Sue Roostan to follow up with Nadia Taylor, Healthwatch regarding 
prioritising vaccine delivery for carers. 

3. Councillor Sanderson’s query regarding priority vaccination for 
volunteers that were not affiliated with statutory organisations, it was 
agreed that this would be followed up with GP practices. 

4. Dr Nicola Lang to share a British Medical Journal article explaining the 
potential factors that has raised concerns about flu rates this winter 
(completed). 

5. Lisa Redfern to raise the need for further development work with care 
homes with H&F ICP.  

6. That the borough-based partnership communications team to link up 
with the council’s communications team to help update the council’s 
covid information webpages. 

7. Clarification about whether pharmacies should be encouraged to co-
administer Covid and flu vaccines and what the evidence base was for 
this to indicate either way what the process should be.  

8. To include a form of words on the council covid information webpage 
that offered advice and guidance about the co-administration of Covid 
and flu vaccination so that people could make an informed choice.  

9. To provide a breakdown of data on Covid, flu, and polio vaccine take 
up, by age, cohort, ethnicity and socioeconomic background.  

10. To note the Board’s recommendation to facilitate a meeting between 
the chief executive of the ICS and the eight directors of social care 
from the North West London boroughs. 

11. To identify any evidence as to whether the current service disruptions 
necessitated by providing a response to Monkey Pox impacted on 
broader provision. An update to be provided after 12 months to identify 
any tend patterns indicating any impact on the delivery of sexual health 
services, for example, an increase in pregnancies, or increased 
infection rates for sexually transmitted diseases. 
 

RESOLVED 
 
1. That the report and associated comments and actions are noted; and 
2. That the Board recommends that the chief executive of the North West 

London Integrated Care System arrange to meet with the eight directors 
of social care from the eight London boroughs to discuss partnership 
working in responding to winter pressures.   

 
5. COST OF LIVING CRISIS AND IMPACT ON HEALTH AND WELLBEING  

 
Councillor Coleman introduced the item which addressed socioeconomic 
concerns following the emerging cost of living crisis and which was likely to 
become more severe, impacting on the health and wellbeing of vulnerable 
communities.  Lisa Redfern explained that this was a timely discussion given 

Page 10



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

the issues around winter pressures and discharge to assess.  Councillor 
Harvey outlined the work being planned and the progress in providing support 
for residents who would be experiencing huge financial concerns.  The 
council hoped to work with advice and faith forums who had reported an 
increase in the number of people that they were seeing for a range of 
reasons. The intention was then to work with local businesses and to bring 
these different organisations together at a public conference.  A final layer of 
work would be to identify community-based support hubs that could offer 
warmth or food.  
 
Phillipa Johnson explained that they were engaged in ongoing conversations 
and activities to support residents and to ensure that the NHS workforce was 
sighted on this work.  There was an opportunity to educate the workforce and 
signpost what support was available.  They were looking at population health 
and identifying the communities that will be greatly affected. They were also 
working Giles Percy and Dr Chad Hockey to support people in the north of the 
borough through the winter. Gathering intelligence data from Imperial and 
CLCH would hopefully underpin the need to protect the NHS workforce, so 
they were better placed to support residents. It was recognised that these 
were ideas that were at the development stage, for example, swapping 
goods, advice, or support for those experiencing hardship.   
 
It was important to review and ensure that there was a sensible offer in the 
borough and co-design this in partnership.  Discussing the use of vouchers 
and payment schemes for heating it was important to be aware of all the 
support that was available. Lisa Redfern confirmed that good communications 
messaging was important so that staff were well informed, for example 
maximising contact with residents.  Councillor Harvey confirmed that the first 
event would be taking place on 7 October and would involve voluntary and 
community charitable organisations and there would be future events that 
were planned for November, which would also include the NHS workforce.   
 
Sue Spiller commented that small voluntary sector groups would struggle to 
meet the cost of heat, utilities and that this might have a direct impact on 
clients.  The same applied to smaller or independent businesses.  
 
Councillor Perez enquired about actions to support those who were digitally 
excluded and what the timing was in terms of collaboration to provide support, 
recognising that the autumn/winter period would be coming up soon. 
Councillor Harvey responded that work was in progress, the council 
maintained a household discretionary fund and a fuel bank was also 
accessible through the welfare rights team.  Councillor Perez suggested that 
information was shared with GP practices to better signpost referral pathways 
more effectively.  Lisa Redfern confirmed that it was crucial to share 
information about what the council and local NHS providers. 
 
Councillor Rowbottom suggested that empty buildings could be utilised, and 
Nadia Taylor asked what practical support could be provided to people.  
Warwickshire County Council was offering a small amount of money to those 
in receipt of pension credit, in addition to money and food vouchers provided 
by the Department of Works and Pensions.  Councillor Coleman recognised 

Page 11



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

how emotive this issue was and invited members to contribute ideas and 
suggestions to the conference being arranged by Councillor Harvey.  
Councillor Coleman sought to emphasise the partnership link between the 
NHS and the local authority to identify ways in which the health and wellbeing 
of residents could be supported during this period.   
 
Nadia Taylor commented that Healthwatch had received many calls about 
difficulties in contacting GPs and suggested that a pre-paid SIM card could be 
given to vulnerable patients, or that a social worker or district nurse could 
maintain links with known patients through their GPs.  People were very 
concerned about communicating with healthcare professionals.  Phillipa 
Johnson noted the suggestion and added that they had looking at similar 
suggestions such as offering a warm space at Parkview and the creation of a 
warmth hub. Councillor Alex Sanderson added to the range of suggestions for 
example, an afterschool homework club and for which equalities funding was 
being sought. Other suggestions included hot water bottles, thermos flasks 
and hand warmers. Lisa Redfern welcomed the ideas being explored and 
confirmed that these were all suggestions that council was considering and 
that could be part of a framework of measures that would be deliverable by 
building an alliance with a wide range of organisations.  
 
ACTION: 
NHS colleagues to investigate the cost of calling a GP, and whether there 
was any scope for mitigating actions such as providing a SIM card.   
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report was noted. 
 

6. DISCHARGE TO ASSESS  
 
Councillor Coleman summarised the report which responded to a change in 
national policy and for government funding for large care packages without 
assessment.  This meant a return to the previous model of funding care 
where needs were assessed by social care services.  Councillor Coleman 
reported that the eight London Boroughs intended to not provide discharge to 
assess services.  
 
Councillor Rowbottom set out her understanding of both the NHS 
multidisciplinary teams and social care departments perspectives and 
described the potential tensions that existed between the need to discharge 
when it was clinically safe for the patient to be at home, supported by an 
appropriate care package, and the difficulties of sustaining a patient in clinical 
hospital care, with risk of increased cost, delays and slow recovery risk to the 
patient. 
 
A further concern was that carers were being asked to provide clinical support 
at home that they were not trained to give.    
 
Lisa Redfern confirmed that the department had reverted their procedures to 
assessing patients in hospital before discharge and that this arrangement was 

Page 12



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

now in place across North West London.  Sue Roostan responded that there 
was evidence to indicate that the discharge to assess model had previously 
worked successfully with assessments carried out in a person’s home.  This 
had reduced package of care and risk. The key was to ensure that the person 
got home, and that the assessment was undertaken within the right timescale.  
Acute care, where the person required care for more complex conditions and 
severe needs was a concern.  Sue Spiller sought further data to identify any 
potential trend patterns to evidence any difference in the discharge to assess 
model which Lisa Redfern confirmed would be looked for.  
 
ACTION:  
Strategic Director of Social Care to contact the Business Intelligence Team, to 
identify data evidencing any different trend patterns in the discharge to 
assess model of care; and the Director of Public Health to contact a colleague 
at Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust and seek out any academic studies 
that may focus on this issue 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Board will monitor the impact of the assessment in hospital model of 
care in terms of social care provision and how this affects both residents and 
social care staff.  
 

7. PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT  
 
Nicola Ashton outlined the work undertaken and the various stages of the 
process leading up to the formal agreement of the borough’s pharmaceutical 
needs assessment.  Some feedback had been received from pharmacies 
about opening hours and dementia pathway referrals and these were 
addressed in the final report, with the recommendations presented on page 4 
of the report were noted.  
 
In the discussion which followed it was agreed that a future agenda item for 
the Board would be to discuss the role of community pharmacies in the 
context of immunisations and vaccinations, dementia and how it might be 
possible to shape the development of pharmacy work roles.  Sue Roostan 
reported that the commissioning of community pharmacies, optometry and 
dentistry services would be returning to borough level control.  In response to 
a query from Councillor Alex Sanderson, Dr Lang explained that £85k of 
funding was being made available specifically for children’s dentistry services.  
Dr Lang reported that she would shortly be meeting with dentists and CLCH 
to ensure that dentistry treatment pathways were clearly signposted.  Data 
had indicated some improvement and Dr Lang was keen to see this continue. 
 
Councillor Harvey enquired if there was a central directory listing NHS 
dentists who treated children.  Sue Roostan confirmed that there was, and 
this had been shared with Afghan refugees and was also available on the 
NHS website.  
 
 
 

Page 13



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

ACTIONS:  
1. To make accessible details of the children’s dentists on the council 

website; 
2. For the Director of Public Health to email details of the work with CLCH to 

Sue Spiller; 
3. To bring children’s dentistry back to a future meeting of the board; and 
4. For Phillipa Johnson to include this area of work within the ICB and 

Pharmacy Action Plan. 
 

8. ELECTIVE HOME EDUCATION - WITHDRAWN  
 

9. WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Board members noted future items that had been agreed through their 
discussions of the previous items.  
 

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
Councillor Coleman reported a governance and constitutional issue with the 
ICB regarding the poor representation of local authorities on the ICB.  There 
had previously been an assurance to increase the number of representatives 
and Councillor Coleman highlighted disparities between the North West 
London ICB and other ICBs, with only one other ICB in Devon with a similar 
constitution.  A request had been made to align the NWL ICB constitution with 
others. The challenge of an ICS was to gain a stronger understanding of how 
local authorities operate differently to NHS organisations and vice versa.  
There was a need to work collaboratively and the absence of a constitution 
that was representative could not facilitate equitable decision-making or 
generate a culture of respect between the NHS and local authorities.  
Councillor Coleman stated that H&F would not be participating in the ICB until 
this was amended.  
 

11. DATES OF NEXT MEETINGS  
 
Tuesday, 13 December 2022. 
 

 
Meeting started: 6.05pm 
Meeting ended: 8.13pm 

 
 

Chair   

 
 
 

Contact officer: Bathsheba Mall 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 07776672816 
 E-mail: bathsheba.mall@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 14



LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM 

 

Report to:   Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date:    13/12/2022  

Subject:   Better Care Fund 2022/23 

Report author: Linda Jackson, Director Social Care & Corporate 
Transformation 

responsible Directors: Lisa Redfern, Strategic Director for Social Care, H&F & 
Sue Roostan, Borough Director, H&F CCG 

  

SUMMARY 

The Better Care Fund paper setting out the proposal for the London Borough of 

Hammersmith & Fulham (H&F) and the H&F Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG). 

This will form part of the submission to NHSEI in December 2022. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the Chair, on behalf of the Health & Wellbeing Board, agrees the planned 

total expenditure and the proposed schemes for 2022-23 

  

2. That the Health and Wellbeing Board receive an end of year report outlining 

the outcomes of each scheme and the difference it has made for residents of 

H&F. 

 

Wards Affected: All 

 

Our Values Summary of how this report aligns to 
the H&F Values 

Creating a compassionate council 
 

The Better Care Fund supports 
community health and social care 
resources to reduce the number of 
people who need to be admitted to 
hospital and supporting people to get 
home as soon as they are well. 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM 

Contact Officer 

Name:  Cheryl Anglin-Thompson 

Position:  Principal Accountant Social Care 
Corporate services 

Telephone: 020 8753 4022 / Mobile 07776 672 473 

Email:  Cheryl.Anglin-Thompson@lbhf.gov.uk  

 

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 

None. 

  

 

1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

1.1 In accordance with the statutory duties and powers given to the Health and 

Wellbeing Board (HWB) by the Health and Social Care Act 2012, the Board’s 

Terms of Reference in Hammersmith & Fulham Council’s constitution include 

overseeing the development and use of the Better Care Fund by the Council 

and the H&F Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG).  

 

1.2 For clarity, the Better Care Fund supports community health and social care 

resources to reduce the number of people who need to be admitted to hospital. 

Residents that do require admission to hospital are supported to get home as 

soon as they are well. 

 

1.3 The Board is asked to review, comment on and endorse the draft Better Care 

Fund guidance and local proposal.1 

 

1.4 This paper supports the development of the submission to NHS England on 

how we plan to pool our monies to support joint working over the forthcoming 

year. The submission is a template submission that has mandated fields for 

completion by both the CCG and Council. The paper below sets out our 

approach, areas where we will work jointly, and the governance arrangements 

to monitor the delivery of the plan in year.  

                                                
1
 BCF Grant Guidance can be found at www.gov.uk/government/news/better-care-fund-framework-

2022-23-published 
 
 
 
 

Page 16

mailto:Cheryl.Anglin-Thompson@lbhf.gov.uk
http://www.gov.uk/government/news/better-care-fund-framework-2022-23-published
http://www.gov.uk/government/news/better-care-fund-framework-2022-23-published


LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM 

 

1.5 Both H&F Council and H&F CCG have committed to completing the template in 

accordance with the Better Care Fund planning guidance. 

 

Sign-off template which will be used for NHSEI submission 

 

Local Authority 
London Borough of Hammersmith & 

Fulham   

Clinical Commissioning Groups 
Hammersmith and Fulham Clinical 

Commissioning Group 

Date to be agreed at Councillors Members 

Board:  
13th December 2022 

Date submitted: 4th December 2022 

Minimum required value of iCB 

contribution to BCF pooled budget: 2022/23  

 £16,244,485 

 

Agreed value of NHS contribution to BCF 

pooled budget 2022/23 

£17,288,408 

 

Agreed value of LA contribution to BCF pooled 

budget 2022/23 
£7,469,049 

Total proposed value of pooled budget 

2021/22 
£52,524,775 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 17



 

1 

 

 

BCF narrative plan template  
 

This is a template for local areas to use to submit narrative plans for the Better Care Fund 

(BCF). All local areas are expected to submit narrative BCF plans but use of this template for 

doing so is optional. Although the template is optional, we encourage BCF planning leads to 

ensure that narrative plans cover all headings and topics from this narrative template.  

These plans should complement the agreed spending plans and ambitions for BCF national 

metrics in your area’s BCF Planning Template (excel).  

There are no word limits for narrative plans, but you should expect your local narrative plans 

to be no longer than 15-20 pages in length. 

Although each Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) will need to agree a separate excel 

planning template, a narrative plan covering more than one HWB can be submitted, where 

this reflects local arrangements for integrated working. Each HWB covered by the plan will 

need to agree the narrative as well as their excel planning template. 

An example answers and top tips document is available on the Better Care Exchange to 

assist with filling out this template.  

Page 18



 

2 
 

Cover 

Health and Wellbeing Board(s)  

 

Bodies involved in preparing the plan (including NHS Trusts, social care provider 

representatives, VCS organisations, housing organisations, district councils) 

 

 How have you gone about involving these stakeholders?  

We have worked with partners to develop a plan built on shared outcomes and a 

commitment to build on learning from the last year across borough-based partnerships, 

3rd sector, providers of Health and social care and residents. Pooled budgets have 

ensured that we work together not only to improve hospital discharge but to address 

health inequalities across the health and care system. 

The planning templates have been completed with input from the NWL local care team.  

NWL Local care team has engaged with system partners for completion of relevant 

sections of the template. For H&F, local system partners are: Imperial College NHS 

Trust, Chelsea & Westminster NHS Trust, Central London Community Healthcare NHS 

Trust, West London Trust, Central and North West London NHS Foundation Trusts and 

LBHF. 

London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 

Page 19



 

3 
 

 

 

Executive summary 

This should include: 

 Priorities for 2022-23 

 Key changes since previous BCF plan 

This submission has been discussed at the H&F BCF Review meeting 

Agreed by the Adult Social Care Leadership Team – lisa.redfern@lbhf.gov.uk  

Retrospective sign-off by Health and Wellbeing Board in September 2022 

lisa.redfern@lbhf.gov.uk  

The H&F HCP executive leadership has reviewed and signed off the BCF plan. H&F 

HCP Executive group members are: CLCH NHS Trust Director, West London NHS Trust 

Director, LBHF Strategic Director, Primary Care Lead, PCN representative, NWL CCG 

Inner London cluster COO, NWL CCG H&F Borough Director. 

HCP Operational Leads Group: Operational Lead representatives from   
NHS Trusts: CLCH, ICHT, ChelWest, WLT 
Primary Care: PCN CDs 
Social care- adults and children’s 
Voluntary sector and patient reps- SOBUS, lay reps, HealthWatch 
NWL ICB: H&F Primary care team and H&F Integration & Delivery team 

 

 

Page 20

mailto:lisa.redfern@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:lisa.redfern@lbhf.gov.uk


 

4 
 

Key Priorities 

 Doing things with residents not to them. This will mean local people are fully 

involved in the service design, delivery and evaluation, using a “strength based” 

approach to health and care. 

 Learning from Covid -19. Our plans being developed will consider the latest data 

and local intelligence to inform delivery so to reduce inequalities in our 

communities This has informed our approaches to vaccinations, we are also 

working with communities about health inequalities specifically how we build 

trust with Black communities 

 We remain committed to preventative and reablement services. We will ensure 

people have improved outcomes and independence and are empowered to 

meet their own health and care needs through the use of a therapeutic model so 

need to increase or at least maintain investment in our Community 

Independence service model. 

 Reduction of length of stay in hospital for residents who no longer require clinical 

support.  Continued investment in step down facilities that support hospital 

discharges including step down for patients with Mental Health needs. 

 Market sustainability. We will need to ensure the acute and primary healthcare 

sectors are adequately supported by the care marketplace, including 

appropriate skills to support the changing needs of residents 

 We support and value our local carers, including young carers. The mental 

health and well-being need of local carers are met by recognising the impact of 

caring on people’s health and long-term care needs and that young carers are 

fully supported into adulthood. 

Metrics 

 No residents discharged from Hospital into residential care 

 Reduction in number of people requiring home support following reablement 

 Reduced length of stay of 14 days and 21 days 

 Discharge to P3 bed within 48hrs of EDD 

 Reducing avoidable admissions via A&E 

 Increase Carers identified and supported  

 

  

Page 21



 

5 
 

Governance  

Please briefly outline the governance for the BCF plan and its implementation in your area. 

  

Send in draft plans by 18 August (this is optional, but strongly recommended)  

Final, signed off plans by 26 September  

Approval letters back by 30 November  

S75s to all be signed by 31 December 

------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Governance Steps and Timelines for 22-23 BCF Plan & Template Submission 

Agreement of Consolidated 22-23 BCF Pooled Budgets 

LA Director Approval & Sign-off SLT Management Meeting   

HWBB Chair Approval & Sign-off CMB (Joint but LA Lead)  

ICP Board Group Oversight & Sign-off (Joint but CCG Lead)  

Following Submission   

HWBB Meeting Retrospective Rubber stamping  

Page 22



 

6 
 

Overall BCF plan and approach to integration 

Please outline your approach to embedding integrated, person centred health, social care 

and housing services including: 

 Joint priorities for 2022-23 

 Approaches to joint/collaborative commissioning 

 Overarching approach to supporting people to remain independent at home, 

including strengths-based approaches and person-centred care. 

How BCF funded services are supporting your approach to integration. Briefly describe any 

changes to the services you are commissioning through the BCF from 2022-23. 

  

 

 

 

 

Page 23



 

7 
 

 

All the partners in our H&F ICP are committed to a shared purpose, building on the 

shared commitment to collaboration to meet the health and wellbeing needs of residents 

in Hammersmith and Fulham. We will do this by building a deep ‘person centred’ 

understanding of the health and care needs in each neighbourhood, co-producing with 

our residents and working together to improve services in the knowledge that we are 

better together than individually. 

As a partnership we have also agreed to a set of shared principles: 

Reducing inequalities and contributions to Population Health 

Reducing Inequalities and using a Population Health Management (PHM) approach to 

underpin all decisions  

Delivery of Vaccine programme, hesitancy and Post Covid care  

Primary Care Networks (PCN) development and integration of neighbourhood teams 

Development of PCNs and reducing variation in PC 

Integrating and organising teams at neighbourhood level, to support complex care and 

frailty, having a strength-based approach to supporting individuals and families 

Keeping people out of hospital, standardisation of services 

Diabetes – achieving new specification to improve health 

Community Mental Health – deliver new community model and NWL access standards 

 Dementia - improving our diagnosis rates in Hammersmith and Fulham as part of our co-

produced Dementia Strategy 

We have joint multi-disciplinary teams (MDT) with PCN’s already in place for frailty, these 

have been happening throughout Covid and have provided a valuable communication 

and shared learning of each other’s ways of working. 

We have reviewed discharge pathways together with PCN, Social Care Trust and 

community health colleagues incl. commissioned providers of care. This has enabled 

safer quicker transfer of care for patients. 

Working with acute Colleagues we meet weekly to reduce length of stay and overcome 

any blockages for discharge. 

We have joint commissioning plans for step up and step-down beds to support hospital 

admission avoidance and reduce length of stay (LOS). 

We are also looking at opportunities to co-commission services for people with learning 

disabilities (LD) and mental health (MH) patients support in a shared care environment, 

to enable people to be re-abled, and gain stability in their lives. 

Page 24



 

8 
 

 

Hammersmith & Fulham (H&F) is going out to re-procure our Home Care and 

independent Living service in the Autumn of 2022 and providers carers are expected to 

carry out a range of health-related task around assistance with medication and low-level 

healthcare needs, including administrating and prompting. In addition to these, the 

following healthcare interventions may be required of a Home Care and Independent 

Living carer: 

 Immunisation reminders and support to book these if necessary - Supporting 

Public Health messages around recommended vaccinations and supporting 

residents to engage with these. 

 Assistance with eye drops / ear drops - Supporting self-administration and some 

assistance with administration - Support for residents if needed and appropriate 

equipment is available. 

 Temperature and blood pressure taking support 

 Medication assistance 

 Topical application of medication - Supporting self-administration and some 

assistance with administration 

 Pressure ulcer care (grade 1) and pressure area monitoring - Monitor skin 

integrity and escalate to relevant professionals as required 

 Simple stoma care - Only with support from District Nursing 

 Simple wound care - Only with support from District Nursing 

 Eating and drinking therapy - As part of self-care programmes 

 Blood glucose monitoring - Only with support from District Nursing 

 Domiciliary foot care - As instructed by clinical teams 

Extensive training will need to be made available by community health Service Providers 

prior to the implementation of any health task to ensure Home Care and Independent 

Living carers are skilled and confident to undertake the above. 

The joint work also creates a new career structure for care workers and professionalises 

the work, which we envisage will reduce workforce shortages. 

Given the joint objectives being achieved through the delivery of homecare in H&F we 

will be look for an increase in the BCF funding to support this. 

Approach to Joint/Collaborative Commissioning 

As in previous years we have a range of Section 75 schemes that the CCG and local 

authority are collaboratively commissioning to support meet the health and care needs of 

the population of Hammersmith and Fulham. These include the following schemes to 

facilitate timely discharge of patients from hospitals: 

- Jointly commissioned nursing and social care beds in two nursing homes 
- Homelessness support services 
- Reablement services 
- Mental Health hospital liaison service 
- Community Independence service 
- Stroke Early supported discharge service 
- Open Age "Steady & Stable" - Falls Prevention Service. 
- Red Cross Service 

Page 25



 

9 
 

In addition to these schemes we have the following jointly commissioned schemes that 
promote the health and wellbeing of our residents, promote independence and support 
them to remain in their normal place of residence; thereby reducing the hospital 
attendances and length of stay in acute settings: 
 

- Joint funded care package and placements for LD clients 
- Joint funded mental health placements 
- Joint funded direct payments and personalised health budget clients 
- Jointly funded community equipment contract 
- Carer’s advice and support services 
- Safeguarding services 

 
 

 

  

Page 26



 

10 
 

Implementing the BCF Policy Objectives (national condition four) 

National condition four requires areas to agree an overarching approach to meeting the BCF 

policy objectives to:  

 Enable people to stay well, safe and independent at home for longer 

 Provide the right care in the right place at the right time  

Please use this section to outline, for each objective: 

 The approach to integrating care to deliver better outcomes, including how 

collaborative commissioning will support this and how primary, community and social 

care services are being delivered to support people to remain at home, or return 

home following an episode of inpatient hospital care 

 How BCF funded services will support delivery of the objective 

Plans for supporting people to remain independent at home for longer should reference 

 steps to personalise care and deliver asset-based approaches 

 implementing joined-up approaches to population health management, and 

preparing for delivery of anticipatory care, and how the schemes commissioned 

through the BCF will support these approaches 

 multidisciplinary teams at place or neighbourhood level. 

Plans for improving discharge and ensuring that people get the right care in the right place, 

should set out how ICB and social care commissioners will continue to: 

 Support safe and timely discharge, including ongoing arrangements to embed a 

home first approach and ensure that more people are discharged to their usual 

place of residence with appropriate support. 

 Carry out collaborative commissioning of discharge services to support this. 

 

Discharge plans should include confirmation that your area has carried out a self-

assessment of implementation of the High Impact Change Model for managing 

transfers of care and any agreed actions for improving future performance. 

Page 27



 

11 
 

 

Integrating Care Around the Person 

H&F vision for health and care integration is to create a strong, sustainable, person-

centred, and integrated health and care system, which improves outcomes for our 

residents. Our model of care is designed to:  

 Deliver more care outside of hospital. 

 Develop an independent living service, which gives people real choice through 

direct payments 

 Provide integrated, personalised, and holistic services.  

 Help residents, carers and professionals work hand in hand to maintain health, 

wellbeing and independence, for as long as possible. 

 Person Centred Approaches: Promoting Choice, Maximising Independence 

 Integrated approaches 

 H&F integrated reablement working alongside and rapid response service has a 

joint holistic person-centred assessment which directs joint care planning and 

delivery across community nursing and adult social care. 

 Promoting Personalisation, Choice and Independence  

 H&F’s model of integrated health and care is designed to offer more choice and 

personalised care planning via: 

 Improving access to information and advice to all our diverse communities  

 The delivery of improved person-centred care planning in neighbourhood teams,  

 supported by a strong platform of social prescribing, including face to face 

support from local teams 

 The home first philosophy, promoting maximum reablement opportunity at home 

 The development of a Carers Strategy which acknowledges and values the role 

of informal carers  

 Creation of step up and step-down opportunities as an alternative to hospital 

admissions 

 Support to residents and their families at end of life 

 Increased capacity for AMHP at A&E to speed up access when needed 

 The use of Disabled Facilities Grant to promote independence and allow people 

to maintain family links where possible. 

 Creative use of technology to enable people to remain at home and feel safe. 

 Working with acute Colleagues we meet weekly to reduce length of stay and 

overcome any blockages for discharge. 

Delivery of joint Health and Care : 

 We have joint MDT with PCN’s already in place for frailty, these have been 

happening throughout Covid and have provided a valuable communication and 

shared learning of each other’s ways of working. 

 We have reviewed discharge pathways together with PCN, Social Care, Trust 

and community health colleagues including commissioned providers of care. 

This has enabled safer quicker transfer of care for patients. 

 Working with acute colleagues (Imperial & Chelwest) we meet x3 per week to 

reduce length of stay and overcome any blockages for discharge. 

 We have joint commissioning plans for step up and step-down beds to support 

hospital admission avoidance and reduce LOS. 

 We are also looking at opportunities to co-commission services for people with 

LD and MH patients support in a shared care environment, to enable people to 

be re-abled, and gain stability in their lives. 

Page 28



 

12 
 

High Impact Change Model self-assessment: 

 Early discharge planning: Established 

Local acute trusts have implemented choice policy of which step 1 includes all patients to 

have EDD on admission, recorded on patient record system and information provided to 

patient/carer. Discharge hubs in place to support discharge planning and facilitate timely 

transfers out of acute settings. 

 Systems to monitor patient flow: Established 

A&E Delivery board framework and urgent care working group well established. H&F LA 

are developing AI and dashboards which will further enhance the local ability to monitor 

patient flow in real time. Local Acute trust to introduce new digital solution to monitor real 

time bed state, Red/Green and ELoS patients to improve management of patient flow. 

 Multi-disciplinary/Multi-agency discharge teams: Mature 

This has remained a multi borough approach within inner London cluster through well-

established discharge hubs. The discharge hubs include VCS (British Red Cross, Hospital 

to Home Service), Social Care, Acute and community services. Hospital social work 

services work 7 days a week which contribute to the MDT discharge processes. H&F 

commission British Red Cross to support discharge of patients from hospital to home.  

At a North West London level, a NWL Discharge Steering Group with membership from all 
trusts, Local Authorities and wider partners meets fortnightly to review progress against 
plans, with a monthly focus on operational performance including LoS, delays etc. 
Ageing Well funding has been allocated to bolster the staffing levels and leadership of the 
integrated discharge hubs (one per acute site), including working 7 day working. These 
discharge hubs include clinicians which provide the "check and challenge" around 
discharge pathways - ensuring the patient is on the right discharge pathway. 
There are also weekly DASS meetings and NWL meetings to look at all matters relating to 
hospital discharges. 
 

 Discharge to assess: Mature 

Discharge to Assess (D2A) Pathways are mature and business as usual.  D2A 

implemented to ensure, where possible, patients are discharged home, with support, for 

assessment of their long-term needs. The expectation is that discharges home will be the 

default for the majority of patients and there will be less reliance on interim placements 

and a reduction in residential placements. It also supports the ongoing work programme to 

reduce the number of DSTs being completed in hospital through the Discharge to Assess 

Care pathways. 

There is a Home First service in place that covers the three inner London boroughs 
(Hammersmith & Fulham, RBKC and Westminster). At a local level, working with acute 
colleagues (Imperial & Chelwest) we meet x 3 per week to reduce length of stay and 
overcome any blockages for discharge 
We have reviewed discharge pathways together with PCN, Social Care, Trust and 
community health colleagues including commissioned providers of care. This has enabled 
safer quicker transfer of care for patients. 
 
It is also vital to note that there in noticeable increase in the need for double handed care 
package for patients being discharged from hospital settings.  This is linked to increased 
demand and patient acuity.   

Page 29



 

13 
 

 

 Seven-day service: Established 

Hospital social work services work 7 days a week to support discharges.  Seven-day 

service already happens for discharges and some step-up services. Further work is 

underway through the ICP to identify support at PCN levels. 

 Trusted Assessors: Established 

Trusted assessor within block contract interim beds rolled out to reduce LoS.   More work 

required with OT’s/ acute and community and residential and nursing homes 

 Focus on choice: Established 

Local system acknowledges that D2A must be resident/ patient led for it to be successful. 

Principles of coproduction embedded within all service developments in H&F at both 

design and delivery phases. Direct payments and Home care are a major focus. Local 

acute trust due to implement choice policy. 

 Intermediate Care Services 

Please see attached Capacity & Demand template for details on  H&F’s intermediate care 
capacity and demand plans. In summary, we have invested over £6.2 million in 22/23 on 
intermediate care services in H&F.   
More than half of this funds the Community Independence Service (CIS) which is an 
intermediate care service providing advanced short- term nursing care, occupational 
therapy, physiotherapy and social care to people with immediate health or functional 
needs, who would otherwise require an admission to hospital. The service aims to offer 
safe care at home which enables people to avoid unplanned hospital admissions. 
 
CIS consists of four teams: 
 
Rapid Response: For urgent same day response within 0-2 hours for people with 
immediate health or functional needs who would otherwise require an admission to 
hospital (input for up to five days).  
 
Home First: Working with acute hospitals to facilitate supported discharge for medically 
stable patients into the community. People can be assessed in their own home on the 
same day. (Input for up to 72 hours) 
 
Rehabilitation: The rehab pathway helps people maintain or regain their independence at 
home to enable people to live well in their own homes, completing roles and tasks that are 
important to them with as much independence as possible. The majority of people will be 
seen within 48hours, with non-urgent referrals assessed within 14 days. (Input for up to six 
weeks) 
 
Reablement: Services are provided in the home to help a person gain confidence and re-
learn skills to carry out daily activities and practical tasks. (Input for up to six weeks) 
 
The other intermediate care services that we commission are: 
 
Community Neuro rehabilitation 
Intermediate care beds at two units (Alexandra and Athlone) 
Beds in Nursing home with funded nursing care contribution and reablement support 
Intermediate care spot placements 

Page 30



 

14 
 

Supporting unpaid carers. 

Please describe how BCF plans and BCF funded services are supporting unpaid carers, 

including how funding for carers breaks and implementation of Care Act duties in the NHS 

mini

mum 

contr

ibuti

on is 

bein

g 

used 

to 

impr

ove 

outc

ome

s for 

unpa

id 

carer

s.  

H&F has a statutory obligation to offer a Care Act 2014 Carers Assessment to 

any adult carer with needs that arise as a consequence of providing necessary 

care to an adult, which result in deterioration in the carers physical or mental 

health, where the carer is ‘unable’ to achieve any of the key outcome defined the 

care act and as a consequence, there is or is likely to be a significant impact on 

the carer’s wellbeing.   

H&F is working in partnership with The carers Network, a third sector 

organisation, to ensure we provide carers assessment to all identified unpaid 

carers and provide them with financial support to prevent carer breakdown. 

H&F also make provision for carers breaks to support as an outcome to carers 

assessments. 

We are in the process of developing a joint carers strategy as part of the Better 

Care Fund. 

Page 31



 

15 
 

Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) and wider services 

 

 

 

What is your approach to bringing together health, social care and housing services together 

to support people to remain in their own home through adaptations and other activity to meet 

the housing needs of older and disabled people? 

We look to revamp a specialist housing board comprising key stakeholders that can help 

take a fresh look at how to best use our collective housing stock in alleviating pressures 

faced by our all organisations in our partnership and focus on using housing to improve the 

quality of life and wellbeing of our residents. 

  

DFG will continue to support adaptations in a timely manner to support residents’ 

discharge. Significant work continues across the Council to secure Occupational 

Therapists to work in aids and adaptations.  

There is an ongoing programme to log all adapted properties and ensure that they are 

used to their maximum potential. 

Development of extra care Housing scheme in white city in 2022 will release units for 

step down reablement flats, this will support people with complex needs to be 

assessed in an out of hospital provision, before decisions are made as to their next 

move. In addition, these flats will have digital equipment to support residents in 

maintaining their Health & wellbeing. 

For residents pending discharge who require micro living arrangements and 

equipment we have used the DGF to be able to put in place temporary solutions 

including smart tech to facilitate the discharge. 

We continue to work with housing colleagues to identify opportunities to develop step 

down facilities, an example of this is voids in extra care have been adapted with DFG 

and technology to support people to step down from Hospital. These are available for 

this winter 

We have a specialist Housing board which has nominated partners attending to 

identify the needs and demands of adapted properties and plans for whole lifetime 

housing options for people 16 years and above. 

Page 32



 

16 
 

Equality and health inequalities 

Briefly outline the priorities for addressing health inequalities and equality for people with 

protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 within integrated health and social care 

services. This should include 

- Changes from previous BCF plan 

- How these inequalities are being addressed through the BCF plan and BCF funded 

services  

- Where data is available, how differential outcomes dependent on protected 

characteristics or for members of vulnerable groups in relation to BCF metrics have 

been considered 

- Any actions moving forward that can contribute to reducing these differences in 

outcomes 

Page 33



 

17 
 

 

We need to change the way we commission and provide services, with a renewed focus 

on reducing health inequalities at the centre of everything we do; addressing inequalities 

under Core20PLUS5, which focuses on the most deprived 20% of a population, the ICS-

identified groups in each area that experience poorer than average access and five 

additional areas of focus. This includes: 

• Proportionally targeting our resources to match the needs of individuals and 

communities to reduce the gap in life expectancy and to increase the quality of life, 

ensuring resources and delivery are in line with need, which may result for example in 

increasing resources for providers in more deprived areas in comparison to less 

deprived areas;  

• Having robust mechanisms to reach, hear from and better understand people and 

communities’ experiences. 

To work with individuals and communities to reduce the effect of the cost-of-living crisis, 

especially on people who are already have physical and mental health needs 

• Ensuring services are informed by both peoples’ and communities’ needs and assets. 

• Connecting our knowledge of local health inequalities with front-line service delivery, 

• Acting for people from pre-conception to after-death. Starting well and ageing well. 

The focus in our BCF for 22-23 will be greater emphasis on improving peoples home 

environment, through DFG, equipment, technology.  

Greater support for people who have mental health needs, either to prevent discharge, 

ensuring resident voices are heard during discharge and as part of support planning. We 

are also looking at step down opportunities for people. 

Increasing the knowledge and skills of staff in relation to cultural competence and how to 

ensure MDT’s are person centred, especially when looking at length of stay and delivery 

of personal care. 

Page 34



BCF Planning Template 2022-23
1. Guidance

Overview

Note on entering information into this template

Throughout the template, cells which are open for input have a yellow background and those that are pre-populated have a blue background, as below:
Data needs inputting in the cell
Pre-populated cells

Note on viewing the sheets optimally
For a more optimal view each of the sheets and in particular the drop down lists clearly on screen, please change the zoom level between 90% - 100%. Most 
drop downs are also available to view as lists within the relevant sheet or in the guidance sheet for readability if required.

The details of each sheet within the template are outlined below.
Checklist (click to go to Checklist, included in the Cover sheet)
1. This section helps identify the sheets that have not been completed. All fields that appear as incomplete should be completed before sending to the Better 
Care Fund Team.
2. The checker column, which can be found on the individual sheets, updates automatically as questions are completed. It will appear 'Red' and contain the 
word 'No' if the information has not been completed. Once completed the checker column will change to 'Green' and contain the word 'Yes'

3. The 'sheet completed' cell will update when all 'checker' values for the sheet are green containing the word 'Yes'.
4. Once the checker column contains all cells marked 'Yes' the 'Incomplete Template' cell (below the title) will change to 'Template Complete'.
5. Please ensure that all boxes on the checklist are green before submission.

2. Cover (click to go to sheet)
1. The cover sheet provides essential information on the area for which the template is being completed, contacts and sign off.
2. Question completion tracks the number of questions that have been completed; when all the questions in each section of the template have been 
completed the cell will turn green. Only when all cells are green should the template be sent to the Better Care Fund Team:
england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net (please also copy in your Better Care Manager).
4. Income (click to go to sheet)
1. This sheet should be used to specify all funding contributions to the Health and Wellbeing Board's (HWB) Better Care Fund (BCF) plan and pooled budget 
for 2022-23. It will be pre-populated with the minimum NHS contributions to the BCF, Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) and improved Better Care Fund (iBCF). 
These cannot be edited.

2. Please select whether any additional contributions to the BCF pool are being made from local authorities or ICBs and enter the amounts in the fields 
highlighted in ‘yellow’. These will appear as funding sources in sheet 5a when you planning expenditure. 

3. Please use the comment boxes alongside to add any specific detail around this additional contribution.

4. If you are pooling any funding carried over from 2021-22 (i.e. underspends from BCF mandatory contributions) you should show these on a separate line 
to the other additional contributions and use the comments field to identify that these are underspends that have been rolled forward. All allocations are 
rounded to the nearest pound. 

5.  Allocations of the NHS minimum contribution (formerly CCG minimum) are shown as allocations from ICB to the HWB area in question. Mapping of the 
allocations from former CCGs to HWBs can be found in the BCF allocation spreadsheet on the BCF section of the NHS England Website.
6. For any questions regarding the BCF funding allocations, please contact england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net (please also copy in your Better Care 
Manager).

Page 35

mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net


5. Expenditure (click to go to sheet)
This sheet should be used to set out the detail of schemes that are funded via the BCF plan for the HWB, including amounts, type of activity and funding 
source. This information is then aggregated and used to analyse the BCF plans nationally and sets the basis for future reporting.

The information in the sheet is also used to calculate total contributions under National Conditions 2 and 3 and is used by assurers to ensure that these are 
met.

The table is set out to capture a range of information about how schemes are being funded and the types of services they are providing. There may be 
scenarios when several lines need to be completed in order to fully describe a single scheme or where a scheme is funded by multiple funding streams (eg: 
iBCF and NHS minimum). In this case please use a consistent scheme ID for each line to ensure integrity of aggregating and analysing schemes.

On this sheet please enter the following information:
1. Scheme ID:
- This field only permits numbers. Please enter a number to represent the Scheme ID for the scheme being entered. Please enter the same Scheme ID in this 
column for any schemes that are described across multiple rows.
2. Scheme Name: 
- This is a free text field to aid identification during the planning process. Please use the scheme name consistently if the scheme is described across multiple 
lines in line with the scheme ID described above.
3. Brief Description of Scheme
- This is a free text field to include a brief headline description of the scheme being planned. The information in this field assists assurers in understanding 
how funding in the local BCF plan is supporting the objectives of the fund nationally and aims in your local plan.

4. Scheme Type and Sub Type: 
- Please select the Scheme Type from the drop-down list that best represents the type of scheme being planned. A description of each scheme is available in 
tab 5b. 
- Where the Scheme Types has further options to choose from, the Sub Type column alongside will be editable and turn "yellow". Please select the Sub Type 
from the drop down list that best describes the scheme being planned.
- Please note that the drop down list has a scroll bar to scroll through the list and all the options may not appear in one view.
- If the scheme is not adequately described by the available options, please choose ‘Other’ and add a free field description for the scheme type in the column 
alongside. Please try to use pre-populated scheme types and sub types where possible, as this data is important in assurance and to our understanding of 
how BCF funding is being used nationally.
- The template includes a field that will inform you when more than 5% of mandatory spend is classed as other. 

5. Area of Spend:
- Please select the area of spend from the drop-down list by considering the area of the health and social care system which is most supported by investing in 
the scheme. 
- Please note that where ‘Social Care’ is selected and the source of funding is “NHS minimum” then the planned spend would count towards National 
Condition 2.
- If the scheme is not adequately described by the available options, please choose ‘Other’ and add a free field description for the scheme type in the column 
alongside. 
- We encourage areas to try to use the standard scheme types where possible.

6. Commissioner:
- Identify the commissioning body for the scheme based on who is responsible for commissioning the scheme from the provider.
- Please note this field is utilised in the calculations for meeting National Condition 3. Any spend that is from the funding source 'NHS minimum contribution', 
is commissioned by the ICB, and where the spend area is not 'acute care', will contribute to the total spend under National Condition 3. This will include 
expenditure that is ICB commissioned and classed as 'social care'. 
- If the scheme is commissioned jointly, please select ‘Joint’. Please estimate the proportion of the scheme being commissioned by the local authority and 
NHS and enter the respective percentages on the two columns.

7. Provider:
- Please select the type of provider commissioned to provide the scheme from the drop-down list.
- If the scheme is being provided by multiple providers, please split the scheme across multiple lines.
8. Source of Funding:
- Based on the funding sources for the BCF pool for the HWB, please select the source of funding for the scheme from the drop down list. This includes 
additional, voluntarily pooled contributions from either the ICB or Local authority
- If a scheme is funded from multiple sources of funding, please split the scheme across multiple lines, reflecting the financial contribution from each.

9. Expenditure (£) 2022-23:
- Please enter the planned spend for the scheme (or the scheme line, if the scheme is expressed across multiple lines)
10. New/Existing Scheme
- Please indicate whether the planned scheme is a new scheme for this year or an existing scheme being carried forward.

This is the only detailed information on BCF schemes being collected centrally for 2022-23 and will inform the understanding of planned spend for the iBCF 
grant and spend from BCF sources on discharge.

6. Metrics (click to go to sheet)
This sheet should be used to set out the HWB's ambitions (i.e. numerical trajectories) and performance plans for each of the BCF metrics in 2022-23. The BCF 
policy  requires trajectories and plans agreed for the fund's metrics. Systems should review current performance and set realistic, but stretching ambitions 
for 2022-23.

A data pack showing more up to date breakdowns of data for the discharge to usual place of residence  and unplanned admissions for ambulatory care 
sensitive conditions is available on the Better Care Exchange.

For each metric, areas should include narratives that describe:
- a rationale for the ambition set, based on current and recent data, planned activity and expected demand
- the local plan for improving performance on this metric and meeting the ambitions through the year. This should include changes to commissioned 
services, joint working and how BCF funded services will support this.

Page 36

https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions


1. Unplanned admissions for chronic ambulatory care sensitive conditions:
- This section requires the  area to input  indirectly standardised rate (ISR) of admissions per 100,000 population by quarter in 2022-23. This will be based on 
NHS Outcomes Framework indicator 2.3i but using latest available population data.
- The indicator value is calculated using the indirectly standardised rate of admission per 100,000, standardised by age and gender to the national figures in 
reference year 2011. This is calculated by working out the SAR (observed admission/expected admissions*100) and multiplying by the crude rate for the 
reference year. The expected value is the observed rate during the reference year multiplied by the population of the breakdown of the year in question.
- The population data used is the latest available at the time of writing (2020)
- Actual performance for each quarter of 2021-22 are pre-populated in the template and will display once the local authority has been selected in the drop 
down box on the Cover sheet.
- Exact script used to pull pre-populated data can be found on the BCX along with the methodology used to produce the indicator value:
https://future.nhs.uk/bettercareexchange/viewdocument?docid=142269317&done=DOCCreated1&fid=21058704
- Technical definitions for the guidance can be found here:
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/march-2022/domain-2---enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-
with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions

2. Discharge to normal place of residence.
- Areas should agree ambitions for the percentage of people who are discharged to their normal place of residence following an inpatient stay. In 2021-22, 
areas were asked to set a planned percentage of discharge to the person's usual place of residence for the year as a whole. In 2022-23 areas should agree a 
rate for each quarter.
- The  ambition should be set for the health and wellbeing board area. The data for this metric is obtained from the Secondary Uses Service (SUS) database 
and is collected at hospital trust. A breakdown of data from SUS by local authority of residence has been made available on the Better Care Exchange to 
assist areas to set ambitions. 
- Ambitions should be set as the percentage of all discharges where the destination of discharge is the person's usual place of residence.
- Actual performance for each quarter of 2021-22 are pre-populated in the template and will display once the local authority has been selected in the drop 
down box on the Cover sheet.

3. Residential Admissions (RES) planning: 
- This section requires inputting the expected  numerator of the measure only.
- Please enter the planned number of council-supported older people (aged 65 and over) whose long-term support needs will be met by a change of setting 
to residential and nursing care during the year (excluding transfers between residential and nursing care)
- Column H asks for an estimated actual performance against this metric in 2021-22. Data for this metric is not published until October, but local authorities 
will collect and submit this data as part of their salt returns in July. You should use this data to populate the estimated data in column H.
- The prepopulated denominator of the measure is the size of the older people population in the area (aged 65 and over) taken from Office for National 
Statistics (ONS) subnational population projections.
- The annual rate is then calculated and populated based on the entered information.

4. Reablement planning:
- This section requires inputting the information for the numerator and denominator of the measure.
- Please enter the planned denominator figure, which is the planned number of older people discharged from hospital to their own home for rehabilitation 
(or from hospital to a residential or nursing care home or extra care housing for rehabilitation, with a clear intention that they will move on/back to their 
own home).
- Please then enter the planned numerator figure, which is the expected number of older people discharged from hospital to their own home for 
rehabilitation (from within the denominator) that will still be at home 91 days after discharge.
- Column H asks for an estimated actual performance against this metric in 2021-22. Data for this metric is not published until October, but local authorities 
will collect and submit this data as part of their salt returns in July. You should use this data to populate the estimated data in column H.
- The annual proportion (%) Reablement measure will then be calculated and populated based on this information.

7. Planning Requirements (click to go to sheet)
This sheet requires the Health and Wellbeing Board to confirm whether the National Conditions and other Planning Requirements detailed in the BCF Policy 
Framework and the BCF Requirements document are met. Please refer to the BCF Policy Framework and BCF Planning Requirements documents for 2022-23 
for further details.
The sheet also sets out where evidence for each Key Line of Enquiry (KLOE) will be taken from.
The KLOEs underpinning the Planning Requirements are also provided for reference as they will be utilised to assure plans by the regional assurance panel.

1. For each Planning Requirement please select ‘Yes’ or ‘No’ to confirm whether the requirement is met for the BCF Plan.
2. Where the confirmation selected is ‘No’, please use the comments boxes to include the actions in place towards meeting the requirement and the target 
timeframes.

Page 37

https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf


Version 1.0.0

Please Note:

Checklist

Complete:
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Tue 25/10/2022 Yes

Please indicate who is signing off the plan for submission on behalf of the HWB (delegated authority is also accepted):
Yes
Yes

Professional 
Title (e.g. Dr, 
Cllr, Prof) First-name: Surname: E-mail:

*Area Assurance Contact Details:
Cllr Ben Coleman Ben.Coleman@lbhf.gov.uk Yes

Rob Hurd rob.hurd@nhs.net Yes

Carol Lambe carol.lambe@nhs.net Yes

Kim Smith Kim.Smith@lbhf.gov.uk Yes

0208 753 4022

Health and Wellbeing Board:

Completed by:

E-mail:

Contact number:

Better Care Fund 2022-23 Template
2. Cover

Cheryl Anglin-Thompson, Pooja Maniar

cheryl.anglin-thompson@lbhf.gov.uk, poojamaniar@nhs.net

Hammersmith and Fulham

- You are reminded that much of the data in this template, to which you have privileged access, is management information only and is not in the public domain. It is not to be 
shared more widely than is necessary to complete the return.
- Please prevent inappropriate use by treating this information as restricted, refrain from passing information on to others and use it only for the purposes for which it is 
provided. Any accidental or wrongful release should be reported immediately and may lead to an inquiry. Wrongful release includes indications of the content, including such 
descriptions as "favourable" or "unfavourable".
- Please note that national data for plans is intended for release in aggregate form once plans have been assured, agreed and baselined as per the due process outlined in the 
BCF Planning Requirements for 2022-23.
- This template is password protected to ensure data integrity and accurate aggregation of collected information. A resubmission may be required if this is breached.
- Where BCF plans are signed off under a delegated authority it must be reflected in the HWB's governance arrangements. 

Role:
Health and Wellbeing Board Chair

Integrated Care Board Chief Executive or person to whom they 
have delegated sign-off
Additional ICB(s) contacts if relevant

Local Authority Chief Executive

Councillor

Has this plan been signed off by the HWB  (or delegated authority) at the time 
of submission?

If no please indicate when the HWB is expected to sign off the plan:

Job Title:
Name: Ben Coleman

No

If using a delegated authority, please state who is signing off the BCF plan: October

<< Please enter using the format, DD/MM/YYYY
Pl  t  th t l  t b  f ll  d d S ti  75 t  t b  

P
age 38



Lisa Redfern Lisa.Redfern@lbhf.gov.uk Yes

Linda Jackson Linda.Jackson@lbhf.gov.uk Yes

Sukvinder Kalsi Sukvinder.Kalsi@lbhf.gov.u
k

Yes

Sue Roostan susanroostan@nhs.net Yes

Yes
Koruthu Varghese kvarghese@nhs.net Yes

Local Authority Director of Adult Social Services (or equivalent)

Better Care Fund Lead Official

LA Section 151 Officer

ICB (HF Borough) Director

ICB (HF Borough) BCF Programme Manager

Please add further area contacts that 
you would wish to be included in 
official correspondence e.g. housing 
or trusts that have been part of the 
process -->

P
age 39



Complete:
2. Cover Yes
4. Income Yes
5a. Expenditure Yes
6. Metrics Yes
7. Planning Requirements Yes

^^ Link back to top

<< Link to the Guidance sheet

Question Completion - When all questions have been answered and the validation boxes below have turned green, please send the template to the 
Better Care Fund Team england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net saving the file as 'Name HWB' for example 'County Durham HWB'. Please also copy in 

your Better Care Manager.

Template Completed

P
age 40

mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net


Funding Sources Income Expenditure Difference
DFG £1,495,597 £1,495,597 £0
Minimum NHS Contribution £16,244,485 £14,895,141 £1,349,344
iBCF £10,027,236 £10,027,236 £0
Additional LA Contribution £7,469,049 £7,469,049 £0
Additional ICB Contribution £17,288,408 £18,663,405 -£1,374,997

Total £52,524,775 £52,550,428 -£25,653

NHS Commissioned Out of Hospital spend from the minimum ICB allocation

Minimum required spend £4,616,222

Planned spend £7,425,303

Adult Social Care services spend from the minimum ICB allocations

Minimum required spend £7,046,965

Planned spend £7,469,838

Scheme Types
Assistive Technologies and Equipment £1,829,592 (3.5%)
Care Act Implementation Related Duties £875,312 (1.7%)
Carers Services £42,846 (0.1%)
Community Based Schemes £6,656,765 (12.7%)
DFG Related Schemes £1,495,597 (2.8%)
Enablers for Integration £167,588 (0.3%)
High Impact Change Model for Managing Transfer of £1,908,531 (3.6%)
Home Care or Domiciliary Care £1,347,114 (2.6%)
Housing Related Schemes £1,052,619 (2.0%)
Integrated Care Planning and Navigation £0 (0.0%)
Bed based intermediate Care Services £51,173 (0.1%)
Reablement in a persons own home £19,909,348 (37.9%)
Personalised Budgeting and Commissioning £109,525 (0.2%)
Personalised Care at Home £866,033 (1.6%)
Prevention / Early Intervention £723,579 (1.4%)
Residential Placements £15,514,805 (29.5%)
Other £0 (0.0%)

Total £52,550,427

2022-23 Q1
Plan

2022-23 Q2
Plan

2022-23 Q3
Plan

2022-23 Q4
Plan

2022-23 Q1
Plan

2022-23 Q2
Plan

2022-23 Q3
Plan

2022-23 Q4
Plan

Better Care Fund 2022-23 Template
3. Summary

Income & Expenditure

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

Income >>

Expenditure >>

Metrics >>

Avoidable admissions

Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory care sensitive 
conditions
(Rate per 100,000 population)

Discharge to normal place of residence

Hammersmith and Fulham

Page 41



94.8% 95.9% 96.0% 95.0%

2020-21 Actual 2022-23 Plan

Annual Rate 193 326

2022-23 Plan

Annual (%) 93.8%

Theme Code Response

PR1 Yes

PR2 Yes

PR3 Yes

PR4 Yes

PR5 Yes

PR6 Yes

PR7 Yes

PR8 Yes

Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were 
still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital into 
reablement / rehabilitation services

Long-term support needs of older people (age 65 and 
over) met by admission to residential and nursing care 
homes, per 100,000 population

Percentage of people, resident in the HWB, who are discharged from 
acute hospital to their normal place of residence

(SUS data - available on the Better Care Exchange)

Metrics

Planning Requirements >>

Reablement

Residential Admissions

NC2: Social Care Maintenance

NC3: NHS commissioned Out of Hospital Services

NC4: Implementing the BCF policy objectives

NC1: Jointly agreed plan

Agreed expenditure plan for all elements of the BCF

Page 42



Running Balances
DFG
Minimum NHS Contribution
iBCF
Additional LA Contribution
Additional NHS Contribution

Total

Required Spend
This is in relation to National Conditions 2 and 3 only. It does NOT make up the total Minimum CCG Contribution (on row 31 above).

Checklist

Column complete:
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Scheme 
ID

Scheme Name Brief Description of 
Scheme

Scheme Type Sub Types Please specify if 
'Scheme Type' is 
'Other'

Area of Spend Please specify if 
'Area of Spend' is 
'other'

Commissioner % NHS (if Joint 
Commissioner)

% LA (if Joint 
Commissioner)

Provider Source of 
Funding

Expenditure (£) New/ 
Existing 
Scheme

1 Farm Lane PFI Contract Beds - Care UK

Residential Placem

Nursing home Community 
Health

LA Private Sector Additional NHS 
Contribution

£1,452,744 Existing

2 St Vincent PFI Contract Beds - Care UK

Residential Placem

Nursing home Continuing Care LA Private Sector Additional NHS 
Contribution

£1,666,999 Existing

3 Contract Beds 
Funded Nursing 
Care (Farm Lane & 

 

Contract Beds - Care UK

Residential Placem

Nursing home Continuing Care LA Private Sector Additional NHS 
Contribution

£458,281 Existing

4 Mary Seacole 
Client 

Extra Care Facility

Residential Placem

Extra care Social Care LA Private Sector Additional NHS 
Contribution

£0 Existing

5 Olive House Client Extra Care Facility

Residential Placem

Extra care Continuing Care LA Private Sector Additional NHS 
Contribution

£28,563 Existing

6 PFI Contract 
Monitoring

Contract Monitoring

Enablers for Integ

Programme 
management

Community 
Health

LA Local Authority Additional NHS 
Contribution

£25,094 Existing

7 Direct Payment Direct Payment/ 
(Personal Budget)

Personalised Care  

Physical 
health/wellbeing

Community 
Health

LA Private Sector Additional NHS 
Contribution

£40,894 Existing

BalanceIncome Expenditure
£0

£1,349,344

Adult Social Care services spend from the minimum ICB 
allocations

£0
£0

£16,244,485
£10,027,236

Under Spend

£0

NHS Commissioned Out of Hospital spend from the minimum 
ICB allocation

Better Care Fund 2022-23 Template
5. Expenditure

£7,469,049
£18,663,405

£52,550,428

£10,027,236

<< Link to summary sheet £1,495,597
£14,895,141

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

£7,469,049

£1,495,597

Hammersmith and Fulham

>> Link to further guidance

Planned Expenditure

£4,616,222

£17,288,408

£52,524,775

-£1,374,997

-£25,653

£7,046,965

£7,425,303

£7,469,838

£0

One or more Funding Sources have an underspend/overpend (see first table at top of this sheet)

Minimum Required Spend Planned Spend

P
age 43



8 Joint Equipment 
Budget

Community Equipment 

Assistive Technolo   

Community based 
equipment

Community 
Health

LA 59.0% Private Sector Additional NHS 
Contribution

£1,117,540 Existing

9 Joint Equipment 
Contract 
Monitoring

Contract Monitoring

Enablers for Integ

Programme 
management

Community 
Health

LA Local Authority Additional NHS 
Contribution

£15,423 Existing

10 LD Placements CHC Joint Funded LD 
Placement

Residential Placem

Learning disability Mental Health LA Private Sector Additional NHS 
Contribution

£550,865 Existing

11 Home Care or 
Domiciliary Care

CHC Joint Funded LD 
Home Care Packages

Home Care or Dom  

Other Home Care 
Services

Continuing Care LA Private Sector Additional NHS 
Contribution

£71,227 Existing

12 Reviewing officer LD Placement Reviewing 
Officer

Bed based interm   

Step down 
(discharge to 
assess pathway-2)

Mental Health LA Local Authority Additional LA 
Contribution

£51,173 Existing

13 Personal Health 
Budgets 

Personal Health Budgets 

Personalised Care  

Physical 
health/wellbeing

Community 
Health

LA Private Sector Additional NHS 
Contribution

£250,276 Existing

14 Carer's Advice, 
Info & Support

Carer's Advice, Info & 
Support

Carers Services

Other Advice, info and 
support for 
carers

Community 
Health

LA Charity / 
Voluntary Sector

Additional NHS 
Contribution

£42,846 Existing

15 Look Ahead North 
East Cluster

Look Ahead North East 
Cluster

Housing Related Schemes

Mental Health LA Charity / 
Voluntary Sector

Additional NHS 
Contribution

£65,334 Existing

16 London Cyrenians 
North West 
Cluster

London Cyrenians North 
West Cluster

Housing Related Schemes

Mental Health LA Charity / 
Voluntary Sector

Additional NHS 
Contribution

£22,502 Existing

17 Housing Support 
(PATHS)

Hospital Liaison Service

High Impact Chan       

Early Discharge 
Planning

Mental Health LA NHS Community 
Provider

Additional NHS 
Contribution

£22,532 Existing

18 Dual Diagnosis 
Worker

Dual Diagnosis Worker

Personalised Care  

Mental health 
/wellbeing

Mental Health LA Charity / 
Voluntary Sector

Additional NHS 
Contribution

£27,055 Existing

19 Groundswell Peer 
Support

Groundswell Peer 
Support

Personalised Care  

Mental health 
/wellbeing

Community 
Health

LA Charity / 
Voluntary Sector

Additional NHS 
Contribution

£15,391 Existing

20 Contract 
Monitoring for 
Support Housing 

Contract Monitoring for 
Support Housing Projects

Enablers for Integ

Programme 
management

Mental Health LA Local Authority Additional NHS 
Contribution

£13,996 Existing

21 Safeguarding Safeguarding Board 
Costs

Enablers for Integ

New governance 
arrangements

Community 
Health

LA Local Authority Additional NHS 
Contribution

£22,027 Existing

22 CHS Safeguarding Safeguarding Board 
Costs

Enablers for Integ

New governance 
arrangements

Community 
Health

LA Local Authority Additional NHS 
Contribution

£20,400 Existing

23 S256 Recurrent 
Reablement

Enhanced Bolstering

Reablement in a p   

Reablement 
service accepting 
community and 

 

Community 
Health

LA Private Sector Additional NHS 
Contribution

£257,457 Existing

24 Community 
Independence 
Service - Joint 

 

Community 
Independence Service - 
Joint Element High Impact Chan       

Home 
First/Discharge to 
Assess - process 

 

Social Care LA NHS Community 
Provider

Minimum NHS 
Contribution

£1,053,533 Existing

25 S256 Transfer to 
Social Care

Reablement & Packages 
of Care

Reablement in a p   

Reablement 
service accepting 
community and 

 

Social Care LA Private Sector Minimum NHS 
Contribution

£5,387,535 Existing

P
age 44



26 Care Act Care Act Implementation 
Services

Care Act 
Implementation 
Related Duties

Carer advice and 
support

Social Care LA Local Authority Minimum NHS 
Contribution

£656,712 Existing

27 7 Day Social Work 
Service (Formerly 
System Resilience)

7 Day  Social Work 
Hospital Discharge  
Service

High Impact 
Change Model for 
Managing Transfer 

 

Multi-
Disciplinary/Multi-
Agency Discharge 

  

Social Care LA NHS Community 
Provider

Minimum NHS 
Contribution

£372,058 Existing

28 Disabled Facilities GAdaptations made to 
homes to promote 
community independent 

DFG Related 
Schemes

Adaptations, 
including statutory 
DFG grants

Social Care LA Local Authority DFG £1,495,597 Existing

29 IBCF Home Care or 
Domiciliary Care

Reablement in a 
persons own 
home

Reablement 
service accepting 
community and 

 

Social Care LA Local Authority iBCF £10,027,236 Existing

30 Contract Beds (Care      Contract Beds - Care UK Residential 
Placements

Nursing home Social Care LA Local Authority Additional LA 
Contribution

£1,433,178 Existing

31 Contract Beds (Care      Contract Beds - Care UK Residential 
Placements

Nursing home Social Care LA Local Authority Additional LA 
Contribution

£2,327,772 Existing

32 Direct Payment Direct Payment/ 
(Personal Budget)

Personalised 
Budgeting and 
Commissioning

<Please Select> Social Care LA Local Authority Additional LA 
Contribution

£109,525 Existing

33 Joint Equipment Bu Community Equipment Assistive 
Technologies and 
Equipment

Community based 
equipment

Social Care LA Local Authority Additional LA 
Contribution

£712,052 Existing

34 LD Placements CHC Joint Funded LD 
Placement

Residential 
Placements

Learning disability Social Care LA Local Authority Additional LA 
Contribution

£636,213 Existing

35 Home Care PackageCHC Joint Funded LD 
Home Care Packages

Home Care or 
Domiciliary Care

Domiciliary care 
packages

Social Care LA Local Authority Additional LA 
Contribution

£256,833 Existing

36 Carer's Advice, Info  Carer's Advice, Info & 
Support

Care Act 
Implementation 
Related Duties

Carer advice and 
support

Social Care LA Local Authority Additional LA 
Contribution

£218,600 Existing

37 Look Ahead North E  Look Ahead North East 
Cluster

Housing Related 
Schemes

Social Care LA Local Authority Additional LA 
Contribution

£430,024 Existing

38 London Cyrenians N   London Cyrenians North 
West Cluster

Housing Related 
Schemes

Social Care LA Local Authority Additional LA 
Contribution

£534,758 Existing

39 Housing Support (P Supporting Discharges 
related to Homelessness

High Impact 
Change Model for 
Managing Transfer 

 

Early Discharge 
Planning

Mental Health LA Local Authority Additional NHS 
Contribution

£23,514 Existing

40 Dual Diagnosis WorSupporting Complex 
Mental Health & 
Addiction clients

Personalised Care 
at Home

Mental health 
/wellbeing

Mental Health LA Local Authority Additional NHS 
Contribution

£27,605 Existing

41 Groundswell Peer SGroundswell Peer 
Support

Personalised Care 
at Home

Mental health 
/wellbeing

Social Care LA Local Authority Additional LA 
Contribution

£40,562 Existing

42 Safeguarding Safeguarding Board 
Costs

Enablers for 
Integration

New governance 
arrangements

Social Care LA Local Authority Additional LA 
Contribution

£70,647 Existing

43 Community Indepe   Community 
Independence Service - 
Joint Element 

Reablement in a 
persons own 
home

Reablement to 
support discharge -
step down 

  

Social Care LA Local Authority Additional LA 
Contribution

£647,712 Existing

P
age 45



Further guidance for completing Expenditure sheet

National Conditions 2 & 3

2022-23 Revised Scheme types

Number Scheme type/ services Sub type Description
1 Assistive Technologies and Equipment 1. Telecare

2. Wellness services
3. Digital participation services
4. Community based equipment
5. Other

Using technology in care processes to supportive self-management, 
maintenance of independence and more efficient and effective delivery of 
care. (eg. Telecare, Wellness services, Community based equipment, Digital 
participation services).

2 Care Act Implementation Related Duties 1. Carer advice and support
2. Independent Mental Health Advocacy
3. Safeguarding
4. Other

Funding planned towards the implementation of Care Act related duties. The 
specific scheme sub types reflect specific duties that are funded via the NHS 
minimum contribution to the BCF.

3 Carers Services 1. Respite Services
2. Other

Supporting people to sustain their role as carers and reduce the likelihood of 
crisis. 

This might include respite care/carers breaks, information, assessment, 
emotional and physical support, training, access to services to support 
wellbeing and improve independence.

4 Community Based Schemes 1. Integrated neighbourhood services
2. Multidisciplinary teams that are supporting independence, such as anticipatory care
3. Low level support for simple hospital discharges (Discharge to Assess pathway 0)
4. Other

Schemes that are based in the community and constitute a range of cross 
sector practitioners delivering collaborative services in the community 
typically at a neighbourhood/PCN level (eg: Integrated Neighbourhood 
Teams)

Reablement services should be recorded under the specific scheme type 
'Reablement in a person's own home'

Schemes tagged with the following will count towards the planned Adult Social Care services spend from the NHS min:
• Area of spend selected as ‘Social Care’
• Source of funding selected as ‘Minimum NHS Contribution’

Schemes tagged with the below will count towards the planned Out of Hospital spend from the NHS min:
• Area of spend selected with anything except ‘Acute’
• Commissioner selected as ‘ICB’ (if ‘Joint’ is selected, only the NHS % will contribute)
• Source of funding selected as ‘Minimum NHS Contribution’

P
age 46



5 DFG Related Schemes 1. Adaptations, including statutory DFG grants
2. Discretionary use of DFG - including small adaptations
3. Handyperson services
4. Other

The DFG is a means-tested capital grant to help meet the costs of adapting a 
property; supporting people to stay independent in their own homes.

The grant can also be used to fund discretionary, capital spend to support 
people to remain independent in their own homes under a Regulatory 
Reform Order, if a published policy on doing so is in place. Schemes using this 
flexibility can be recorded under 'discretionary use of DFG' or 'handyperson 
services' as appropriate

6 Enablers for Integration 1. Data Integration
2. System IT Interoperability
3. Programme management
4. Research and evaluation
5. Workforce development
6. Community asset mapping
7. New governance arrangements
8. Voluntary Sector Business Development
9. Employment services
10. Joint commissioning infrastructure
11. Integrated models of provision
12. Other

Schemes that build and develop the enabling foundations of health, social 
care and housing integration, encompassing a wide range of potential areas 
including technology, workforce, market development (Voluntary Sector 
Business Development: Funding the business development and preparedness 
of local voluntary sector into provider Alliances/ Collaboratives) and 
programme management related schemes.

Joint commissioning infrastructure includes any personnel or teams that 
enable joint commissioning. Schemes could be focused on Data Integration, 
System IT Interoperability, Programme management, Research and 
evaluation, Supporting the Care Market, Workforce development, 
Community asset mapping, New governance arrangements, Voluntary Sector 
Development, Employment services, Joint commissioning infrastructure 
amongst others.

7 High Impact Change Model for Managing Transfer of Care 1. Early Discharge Planning
2. Monitoring and responding to system demand and capacity
3. Multi-Disciplinary/Multi-Agency Discharge Teams supporting discharge
4. Home First/Discharge to Assess - process support/core costs
5. Flexible working patterns (including 7 day working)
6. Trusted Assessment
7. Engagement and Choice
8. Improved discharge to Care Homes
9. Housing and related services
10. Red Bag scheme
11. Other

The eight changes or approaches identified as having a high impact on 
supporting timely and effective discharge through joint working across the 
social and health system. The Hospital to Home Transfer Protocol or the 'Red 
Bag' scheme, while not in the HICM, is included in this section.

8 Home Care or Domiciliary Care 1. Domiciliary care packages
2. Domiciliary care to support hospital discharge (Discharge to Assess pathway 1)
3. Domiciliary care workforce development
4. Other

A range of services that aim to help people live in their own homes through 
the provision of domiciliary care including personal care, domestic tasks, 
shopping, home maintenance and social activities. Home care can link with 
other services in the community, such as supported housing, community 
health services and voluntary sector services.

9 Housing Related Schemes This covers expenditure on housing and housing-related services other than 
adaptations; eg: supported housing units.

P
age 47



10 Integrated Care Planning and Navigation 1. Care navigation and planning
2. Assessment teams/joint assessment
3. Support for implementation of anticipatory care
4. Other

Care navigation services help people find their way to appropriate services 
and support and consequently support self-management. Also, the assistance 
offered to people in navigating through the complex health and social care 
systems (across primary care, community and voluntary services and social 
care) to overcome barriers in accessing the most appropriate care and 
support. Multi-agency teams typically provide these services which can be 
online or face to face care navigators for frail elderly, or dementia navigators 
etc. This includes approaches such as Anticipatory Care, which aims to 
provide holistic, co-ordinated care for complex individuals.

Integrated care planning constitutes a co-ordinated, person centred and 
proactive case management approach to conduct joint assessments of care 
needs and develop integrated care plans typically carried out by professionals 
as part of a multi-disciplinary, multi-agency teams.

Note: For Multi-Disciplinary Discharge Teams related specifically to discharge, 
please select HICM as scheme type and the relevant sub-type. Where the 
planned unit of care delivery and funding is in the form of Integrated care 
packages and needs to be expressed in such a manner, please select the 
appropriate sub-type alongside.

11 Bed based intermediate Care Services 1. Step down (discharge to assess pathway-2)
2. Step up
3. Rapid/Crisis Response
4. Other

Short-term intervention to preserve the independence of people who might 
otherwise face unnecessarily prolonged hospital stays or avoidable admission 
to hospital or residential care. The care is person-centred and often delivered 
by a combination of professional groups. Four service models of intermediate 
care are: bed-based intermediate care, crisis or rapid response (including 
falls), home-based intermediate care, and reablement or rehabilitation. 
Home-based intermediate care is covered in Scheme-A and the other three 
models are available on the sub-types.

12 Reablement in a persons own home 1. Preventing admissions to acute setting
2. Reablement to support discharge -step down (Discharge to Assess pathway 1)
3. Rapid/Crisis Response - step up (2 hr response)
4. Reablement service accepting community and discharge referrals
5. Other

Provides support in your own home to improve your confidence and ability to 
live as independently as possible

13 Personalised Budgeting and Commissioning Various person centred approaches to commissioning and budgeting, 
including direct payments.

14 Personalised Care at Home 1. Mental health /wellbeing
2. Physical health/wellbeing
3. Other

Schemes specifically designed to ensure that a person can continue to live at 
home, through the provision of health related support at home often 
complemented with support for home care needs or mental health needs. 
This could include promoting self-management/expert patient, establishment 
of ‘home ward’ for intensive period or to deliver support over the longer term 
to maintain independence or offer end of life care for people. Intermediate 
care services provide shorter term support and care interventions as opposed 
to the ongoing support provided in this scheme type.

15 Prevention / Early Intervention 1. Social Prescribing
2. Risk Stratification
3. Choice Policy
4. Other

Services or schemes where the population or identified high-risk groups are 
empowered and activated to live well in the holistic sense thereby helping 
prevent people from entering the care system in the first place. These are 
essentially upstream prevention initiatives to promote independence and 
well being.

P
age 48



16 Residential Placements 1. Supported living
2. Supported accommodation
3. Learning disability
4. Extra care
5. Care home
6. Nursing home
7. Discharge from hospital (with reablement) to long term residential care (Discharge to Assess Pathway 3)
8. Other

Residential placements provide accommodation for people with learning or 
physical disabilities, mental health difficulties or with sight or hearing loss, 
who need more intensive or specialised support than can be provided at 
home.

18 Other Where the scheme is not adequately represented by the above scheme 
types, please outline the objectives and services planned for the scheme in a 
short description in the comments column.

P
age 49



Checklist
2021-22 Q1

Actual
2021-22 Q2

Actual
2021-22 Q3

Actual
2021-22 Q4

Actual
Complete:

Indicator value 29.9 38.0 31.2 20.4
2022-23 Q1

Plan
2022-23 Q2

Plan
2022-23 Q3

Plan
2022-23 Q4

Plan

Indicator value 30 38 31 20 Yes

2021-22 Q1
Actual

2021-22 Q2
Actual

2021-22 Q3
Actual

2021-22 Q4
Actual

Quarter (%) 94.2% 94.9% 95.0% 94.1% Yes

Numerator 2,997 3,153 3,018 2,878

Denominator 3,182 3,321 3,176 3,059
2022-23 Q1

Plan
2022-23 Q2

Plan
2022-23 Q3

Plan
2022-23 Q4

Plan
Quarter (%) 94.8% 95.9% 96.0% 95.0%

Numerator 2,967 3,136 2,999 2,857 Yes

Denominator 3,129 3,270 3,124 3,006 Yes

2020-21 
Actual

2021-22 
Plan

2021-22 
estimated

2022-23 
Plan

Annual Rate 193.4 575.6 464.2 326.1
Yes

Numerator 40 124 100 72
Yes

Denominator 20,687 21,544 21,544 22,081

8.4 Residential Admissions

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

8.1 Avoidable admissions

Local plan to meet ambition
The Discharge to usual place of residence 
plan was calculated by creating a 22/23 
forecast using the 21/22 quarterly values 
and then applying a 1% reduction to this 
forecast. Please note the 21/22 actuals 
were produced by the BCF team. Q1 22/23 
plan was set to be the Q1 22/23 actuals 
(based on M1-M2 22/23 data).

We are continuing a focus as a sector on 
improving our discharge levels and are 
implementing measures to improve flow 
by local and sector partnership working 
and internal improvements within trusts 
and our integrated care hubs. Whilst we 
expect some improvements, we are not 
making significant changes in terms 
capacity in out of hospital immediately, 
though this remains our longer term plan  

8.3 Discharge to usual place of residence

Long-term support needs of older people (age 65 
and over) met by admission to residential and 
nursing care homes, per 100,000 population

Actuals for 1st qtr (April to June) 
extrapolated

Where possible most people should 
continue to live in their own home with 
the clinical wraparound they need and the 
social care support. Only when this is not 
possible, should nursing and residential 
care be offered. However, stepdown care 
in homes can be invaluable before 
discharging someone home.

Rationale for how ambition was set Local plan to meet ambition

Better Care Fund 2022-23 Template
6. Metrics

Rationale for how ambition was set Local plan to meet ambition
The Avoidable Admission 22/23 Q1-Q4 
plan was calculated by reducing 21/22 Q1-
Q4  Actual Observed values by 1% and 
recalulating the Indicator Value based on 
this reduced Observed value. Please note 

We are continuing a focus as a sector on 
improving our discharge levels and are 
implementing measures to improve flow 
by local and sector partnership working 
and internal improvements within trusts 

Percentage of people, resident in the HWB, who 
are discharged from acute hospital to their normal 
place of residence

(SUS data - available on the Better Care Exchange)

Indirectly standardised rate (ISR) of admissions per 
100,000 population

(See Guidance)

>> link to NHS Digital webpage (for more detailed guidance)

Hammersmith and Fulham

Rationale for how ambition was set

P
age 50

https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions


2020-21 
Actual

2021-22 
Plan

2021-22 
estimated

2022-23 
Plan

Annual (%) 92.1% 92.7% 94.1% 93.8%
Yes

Numerator 35 36 48 45
Yes

Denominator 38 39 51 48

Yes

Please note that due to the demerging of Northamptonshire, information from previous years will not reflect the present geographies.

As such, the following adjustments have been made for the pre-populated figures above:
 - 2020-21 actuals (for Residential Admissions and Reablement) for North Northamptonshire and West Northamptonshire are using the Northamptonshire combined figure;
 - 2021-22 and 2022-23 population projections (i.e. the denominator for Residential Admissions) have been calculated from a ratio based on the 2020-21 estimates.

8.5 Reablement

Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were 
still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital 
into reablement / rehabilitation services

Rationale for how ambition was set Local plan to meet ambition
Ambition set from targets from the 
previous years.

We're continuing to redesign the social 
care front door so that most people have a 
period of reablement to prevent 
unnecessary admission into hospital and 
to facilitate a speedy discharge home. We 
have a health and social care - strategic 
sub-group - Support at Home, which 
reports into the Frailty campaign group of 
the ICP.

Long-term support needs of older people (age 65 and over) met by admission to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population (aged 65+) population projections are based on a calendar year using 
the 2018 based Sub-National Population Projections for Local Authorities in England:
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based

P
age 51

https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based


Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: Hammersmith and Fulham

Theme Code

Planning Requirement Key considerations for meeting the planning requirement
These are the Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOEs) underpinning the Planning Requirements (PR)

Confirmed through Please confirm 
whether your 
BCF plan meets 
the Planning 
Requirement?

Please note any supporting 
documents referred to and 
relevant page numbers to 
assist the assurers

Where the Planning 
requirement is not met, 
please note the actions in 
place towards meeting the 
requirement

Where the Planning 
requirement is not met, 
please note the anticipated 
timeframe for meeting it

PR1 A jointly developed and agreed plan 
that all parties sign up to

Has a plan; jointly developed and agreed between ICB(s) and LA; been submitted?

Has the HWB approved the plan/delegated approval?

Have local partners, including providers, VCS representatives and local authority service leads (including housing and DFG leads) been 
involved in the development of the plan?

Where the narrative section of the plan has been agreed across more than one HWB, have individual income, expenditure and metric 
sections of the plan been submitted for each HWB concerned?

Cover sheet 

Cover sheet 

Narrative plan

Validation of submitted plans

Yes

The plan has been signed off 
(delegated approval) by Cllr 
Coleman on behalf of the 
HWB. 
Please see attached plan 
narrative: 
page 2 

PR2 A clear narrative for the integration of 
health and social care

Is there a narrative plan for the HWB that describes the approach to delivering integrated health and social care that describes:

 • How the area will continue to implement a joined-up approach to integrated, person-centred services across health, care, housing and 
wider public services locally

 • The approach to collaborative commissioning

 • How the plan will contribute to reducing health inequalities and disparities for the local population, taking account of people with 
protected characteristics? This should include
   - How equality impacts of the local BCF plan have been considered

   - Changes to local priorities related to health inequality and equality, including as a result of the COVID 19 pandemic, and how activities in 
the document will address these.

The area will need to also take into account Priorities and Operational Guidelines regarding health inequalities, as well as local authorities' 
priorities under the Equality Act and NHS actions in line with Core20PLUS5.

Narrative plan 

Yes

Please see attached plan 
narrative:
• pages 6 & 7
• pages 7 & 8
• page 15

PR3 A strategic, joined up plan for Disabled 
Facilities Grant (DFG) spending

Is there confirmation that use of DFG has been agreed with housing authorities?

 • Does the narrative set out a strategic approach to using housing support, including use of DFG funding that supports independence at 
home?

 • In two tier areas, has:
   - Agreement been reached on the amount of DFG funding to be passed to district councils to cover statutory DFG? or
   - The funding been passed in its entirety to district councils?

Narrative plan

Confirmation sheet

Yes

Please see plan narrative:
• page 14

NC2: Social Care 
Maintenance

PR4 A demonstration of how the area will 
maintain the level of spending on 
social care services from the NHS 
minimum contribution to the fund in 
line with the uplift in the overall 
contribution

Does the total spend from the NHS minimum contribution on social care match or exceed the minimum required contribution (auto-
validated on the planning template)?

Auto-validated on the planning template

Yes

NC3: NHS commissioned 
Out of Hospital Services

PR5 Has the area committed to spend at 
equal to or above the minimum 
allocation for NHS commissioned out 
of hospital services from the NHS 
minimum BCF contribution?

Does the total spend from the NHS minimum contribution on non-acute, NHS commissioned care exceed the minimum ringfence (auto-
validated on the planning template)?

Auto-validated on the planning template

Yes

NC4: Implementing the 
BCF policy objectives

PR6 Is there an agreed approach to 
implementing the BCF policy 
objectives, including a capacity and 
demand plan for intermediate care 
services?

Does the plan include an agreed approach for meeting the two BCF policy objectives:
- Enable people to stay well, safe and independent at home for longer and 
- Provide the right care in the right place at the right time?

 • Does the expenditure plan detail how expenditure from BCF funding sources supports this approach through the financial year?

 •Has the area submitted a Capacity and Demand Plan alongside their BCF plan, using the template provided?

 • Does the narrative plan confirm that the  area has conducted a self-assessment of the area's implementation of the High Impact Change 
Model for managing transfers of care? 

 • Does the plan include actions going forward to improve performance against the HICM?

Narrative plan 

Expenditure tab

C&D template and narrative

Narrative plan

Narrative template

Yes

Please see attached plan 
narrative
• pages 10, 11 & 12

NC1: Jointly agreed plan

Better Care Fund 2022-23 Template
7. Confirmation of Planning Requirements

P
age 52



Agreed expenditure plan 
for all elements of the 
BCF

PR7 Is there a confirmation that the 
components of the Better Care Fund 
pool that are earmarked for a purpose 
are being planned to be used for that 
purpose?

 • Do expenditure plans for each element of the BCF pool match the funding inputs? (auto-validated)

 • Is there confirmation that the use of grant funding is in line with the relevant grant conditions? (see paragraphs 31 – 43 of Planning 
Requirements) (tick-box)

 • Has the area included a description of how BCF funding is being used to support unpaid carers? 

 • Has funding for the following from the NHS contribution been identified for the area:
   - Implementation of Care Act duties?
   - Funding dedicated to carer-specific support?
   - Reablement?

Expenditure tab

Expenditure plans and confirmation sheet

Narrative plan

Narrative plans, expenditure tab and 
confirmation sheet

Yes

Please see attached plan 
narrative:
• page 13

Metrics

PR8 Does the plan set stretching metrics 
and are there clear and ambitious 
plans for delivering these?

 • Have stretching ambitions been agreed locally for all BCF metrics?

 • Is there a clear narrative for each metric setting out: 
        - the rationale for the ambition set, and 
        - the local plan to meet this ambition?

Metrics tab

Yes

P
age 53



LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM 

 
 

Report to:   Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date:    13/12/2022 

Subject:   Hospital Discharge fund 2022/23 

Report author: Linda Jackson, Director Social Care & Corporate 

Transformation 

 
Responsible Director: Lisa Redfern, Strategic Director for Social Care, H&F  

  

SUMMARY 

The Hospital discharge fund was released in November 2022. In total £500m has been 

made available to social care Departments to improve hospital discharges over the winter. 

40% of the fund has been given directly to Councils for Adult Social Care. For Hammersmith 

this is £765,318 

60% of the fund has been allocated through Integrated Care Systems (ICS), for Northwest 

Lo0ndon that equates to £8, 658,000. This has been split across the 8 boroughs at 

£1,000,000 per borough. The remaining £658,000 will be spent on schemes that benefit the 

ICS system.  

Section 2 of this report outlines how the £1,765,318 will be spent to improve discharge. 

 

Recommendations 

1. That the Chair, on behalf of the Health & Wellbeing Board, agrees the planned 

total expenditure and the proposed schemes for 2022-23 

  

2. That the Health and Wellbeing Board receive an end of year report outlining 

the outcomes of each scheme and the difference it has made for residents of 

H&F. 

 

Wards Affected: All 

Our Values Summary of how this report aligns to 
the H&F Values 

Creating a compassionate council 
 

The Adult care discharge Fund supports 
community health and social care 
resources to increase hospital 
discharges and supporting people to get 
home as soon as they are well. 

 

Page 54

Agenda Item 6



LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM 

 
 

 

Contact Officer 

Name:  David Hore 

Position:  Finance Manager Social Care 
Corporate services 

Telephone: 020 8753 4498 

Email:  david.hore@lbhf.gov.uk  

 

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 

 None. 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

1.1 In accordance with the statutory duties and powers1 given to the Health and 

Wellbeing Board (HWB) by the Health and Social Care Act 2012, the Board’s 

Terms of Reference in Hammersmith & Fulham Council’s constitution include 

overseeing the funds to Support Hospital discharges. 

 

1.2 NHS England (NHSE) also requires the HWBB to sign off the discharge grant 

submission, ahead of the formal submission of 16th December 2022. 

 

1.3 The Board is asked to review, comment on and endorse the draft adult 

discharge fund proposals. 

 

1.4 This paper supports the development of the submission to NHS England on 

how we plan to pool our monies to support joint working over the forthcoming 

year. The submission is a template submission that has mandated fields.  

2.0. Expenditure proposal 

2.1 The table below sets out our approach, areas where we will work jointly, and 

the governance arrangements to monitor the delivery of the plan in year. 

2.2 The table details the draft hospital discharge plan, using the scheme types 

included in the reporting templates, which Local Authority and Integrated Care 

Systems must use to report against.  All scheme types are related to hospital 

                                                
1
 Adult Social Care Discharge Fund Guidance available at 

www.gov.uk/government/publications/adult-social-care-discharge-fund/letter-to-the-health-and-social-
care-sector-from-the-minister-for-care--2 
 

Page 55

mailto:david.hore@lbhf.gov.uk
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/adult-social-care-discharge-fund/letter-to-the-health-and-social-care-sector-from-the-minister-for-care--2
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/adult-social-care-discharge-fund/letter-to-the-health-and-social-care-sector-from-the-minister-for-care--2


LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM 

 
 

discharge only and not admission avoidance. Mental Health services are 

included.  All expenditure must be made before 31st March 2023. 

Scheme types/services  Sub type       £ 

   

Domiciliary Care   

Assistive Technologies and 
Equipment 1.     Telecare 

 

 2.     Community based equipment  

 3.     Other  

Home Care or Domiciliary Care 
 1.     Domiciliary care packages 

 

 2.     Domiciliary care to support 
hospital discharge 

 

 3.     Domiciliary care workforce 
development 

 

 4.     Other  

Reablement in a Person’s Own 
Home 
 

1.     Reablement to support to 
discharge – step down 

 

 2.     Reablement service accepting 
community and discharge 

 

 3.   Other  

Total Domiciliary Care (40% of 
grant) 

  
699,066 

   

Step Down Beds   
Bed Based Intermediate Care Services 

 
1.     Step down (discharge to assess 
pathway 2) 

 

 2.  Other  

Step Down Beds (40% of grant)  699,066 

   

Care Homes   

Residential Placements 
 1.     Care home 

 

 2.     Nursing home  

 3.     Discharge from hospital (with 
reablement) to long term care 

 

 4.     Other  

Care Homes (10% of grant)  174,766 

   

Local Initiatives   

Increase hours worked by 
existing workforce 1.  Childcare costs 

 

 2.  Overtime for existing staff.  

Improve retention of existing 
workforce 
 

1.  Retention bonuses for existing 
care staff 

 

 2.  Incentive payments  

Page 56



LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM 

 
 

 3.  Wellbeing measures  

 4.   Bringing forward planned pay 
increases 

 

Additional or redeployed capacity 
from current care workers 
 1.  Costs of agency staff 

 

 2.  Local staff banks  

 3.  Redeploy other local authority 
staff 

 

Local recruitment initiatives   

Other   

Local Initiatives (10% of grant)  174,766 

   

Administration  17,653 

   

TOTAL  1,765,318 

 

Sign-off template which will be used for NHSEI submission 

 

Local AuNHSthority 
London Borough of Hammersmith & 

Fulham   

NWL Integrated Care System NWL Integrated Care System 

Date to be agreed at Councillors Members 

Board:  
13th December 2022 

Date submitted: 4th December 2022 

Local Authority Allocation £ 765,318 

NWL ICS Allocation £ 1,000,000 

Total Grant available £1,765,318 

 
 

 

Page 57



North West London ICS 

Integrated Care Board and 
Integrated Care Partnership

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 7



• Integrated Care Boards and Integrated Care Partnerships were formally established by the Health and Care Act 2022 
(technically by amending the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health 
Act 2007)

•The Integrated Care Partnership is a statutory committee
- Its primary function is to prepare a health and care strategy that shows how the NHS and LAs will exercise their functions 

to meet the assessed needs of the local population
- Membership must include at least one member from the ICB and at least one member appointed by each of the relevant 

local authorities

•The Integrated Care Board is the statutory body that oversees NHS funds and secures the provision of NHS services
- Membership of the ICB includes partner members from local authorities
- The ICB must prepare a five year plan that shows how the NHS bodies propose to exercise their functions; the plan must 

have regard to both the strategy prepared by the ICP and the joint local health and wellbeing strategies prepared by the 
Health and Well-Being boards

•Local authorities must have regard to both the strategy prepared by the ICP and the joint local health and wellbeing 
strategies prepared by the Health and Well-Being boards

Summary

P
age 59



M
ust have regard to the relevant local strategies developed by 

the Health and W
ellbeing Boards

Schematic

NW London ICS Board (monthly)
Chair: Penny Dash 

Statutory body:
•Oversees NHS funding and services for 
NWL

•Develop a detailed plan to meet 
strategy (including quality, access and 
allocation of NHS funds)

•Secure the provision of NHS services

NW London Integrated Care 
Partnership (at least three times a 

year)
Co-Chairs: Nafsika Butler-Thalassis & 

Penny Dash
Statutory committee to:
•Develop overall strategy to meet the 
assessed health and care needs of 
NWL’s population

•Review progress against strategy
•Act as forum to align purpose, plans 
and strategy of partners

Local authorities 
Statutory bodies 
•Oversee public health and social care 
funding and services across NWL (as 
well as broader LA functions)

•Secure the provision of public health 
and social care services 

Sit on

Sit on

Sit on

Joint Health and Well being Boards
Chairs: LA elected member

Statutory committee:
•Prepares joint strategic needs 
assessments of local population

•Develops joint local health and 
wellbeing strategy

•Promotes greater integration between 
LA and NHS services

M
us

t h
av

e 
re

ga
rd

 to
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

Ca
re

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip Sit on

Sit on

Must have regard 
to strategy 

prepared by ICP 

Must be informed by 
JSNAs prepared by JHWBs

P
age 60



More detailed structure

Provider collaboratives
Functions:
• Improve health & care outcomes and reduce health & care inequalities for 

populations served by provider members & the ICS population as a whole 
• Deliver quality, access and cost benefits for residents which individual 

providers could not achieve on their own
• Share and coordinate resources, leadership and best practice 
• Work through borough partners and P/LCNs to help them deliver their 

priorities
• Coordinate acute/ mental health/ community care 
• Develop and deliver the cancer strategy, to ensure whole system cancer 

care planning and support and lead strategic changes in cancer care

Delivery mechanisms

Borough Based Partnerships (x7*)
Functions:
• Improve health & care outcomes and reduce health & care inequalities for 

the populations served in the provider’s catchment, 
• Deliver quality, access and cost benefits for residents, through 

continuously improving services provided 
• Work through borough partners and provider collaboratives to help them 

deliver their priorities
• Oversee Primary Care Networks

* RBKC and Westminster operate as a combined BBP

NW London ICS Board (monthly, alternating 
formal meeting and seminar)

Chair: Penny Dash 
Functions:
• Agree strategies to improve health, quality 

and operational performance
• Develop a detailed plan to meet strategy 
• Develop a capital plan for NHS providers
• Secure the provision of health services
• Allocate resource/ delegate resources
• Co-ordinate people and culture 

development 
• Ensure financial sustainability
• Hold all parts of systems to account for 

improved outcomes 
• Support collaborative problem solving and 

drive transformation 

Statutory 
partnership 

body

NW London Integrated Care Partnership (at 
least three times a year)

Co-Chairs: Cllr Nafsika Butler-Thalassis & 
Penny Dash

Functions:
• Develop overall strategy to meet the wider 

health, public health and social care needs 
inc. goals to reduce inequalities and 
economic development (built from local 
place based needs assessment) 

• Align purpose, ambitions and strategy of 
partners

• Develop approach to consultation and 
engagement 

• Refer decisions back to NHS Board as 
appropriate 

• Advise on strategy and delivery

Statutory 
NHS body

Has 
regard to 

wider 
strategy

NW London NHS Chairs (quarterly)
Chair: Penny Dash 

Functions:
• Engage NHS Chairs and LA leaders 
• Advise on strategy and delivery
• Support collaborative system problem 

solving

Non-
Statutory 

group

LA Leaders & NHS Group (monthly)

Functions:
• Proven effective for LA/ICS engagement 
• Work collaboratively to shape strategy, 

policy, and significant service 
developments

Non-
Statutory 

group

Coordinate and collaborate

4

P
age 61



Membership of ICP and ICS

NW London ICS Board 
(monthly)

Voting members
• Independent chair of NW London ICB
• 4 x Non executives 
• Chief executive, NW London ICB 
• 3 x statutory ICB executives (CFO, CNO, medical 

director)
• 1 x primary care partner member
• 1 x NHS trust partner member
• 3 x Local Authority partner members 
• 1 x mental health member

In addition, the ICB is attended by named participants, 
including NHS trust chief executives, representatives 
of NW London local authorities, other ICB and ICS 
executives and SROs of ICS Programmes 

Statutory partnership body
NW London Integrated Care Partnership

(frequency tbc)
Statutory minimum
• One appointed by the ICB
• One appointed by each local authority in NWL (8 in 

total)
Proposed additional members
• Voting members of the ICB (see opposite)

In addition, the ICP is advised by a Strategy Forum 
that includes representation from our borough based 
partnerships, residents, LA officers (public health, 
children’s services, adult social services), academic 
partners, third sector and NHS providers

Statutory NHS body

5

P
age 62


	Agenda
	3 Minutes and Actions
	Minutes

	5 Better Care Fund
	Item 5.1 Better Care Fund Narrative Template 2022-23
	Better Care Fund Framework - Appendix 1 Planning Guidance
	1. Guidance

	Better Care Fund Framework - Appendix 2  Planning Cover
	2. Cover

	Better Care Fund Framework - Appendix 3 Planning Summary
	3. Summary

	Better Care Fund Framework - Appendix 4 Planning 5a Expenditure
	5a. Expenditure

	Better Care Fund Framework - Appendix 5 Planning 5b Expenditure
	5b. Expenditure guidance

	Better Care Fund Framework - Appendix 6 Planning Metrics
	6. Metrics

	Better Care Fund Framework - Appendix 7 - Planning Requirements
	7. Planning Requirements


	6 Hospital Discharge fund 2022/23
	7 Integrated Care System and H&F Care Partnership Policy Context
	North West London ICS ��Integrated Care Board and Integrated Care Partnership
	Summary
	Schematic
	More detailed structure
	Membership of ICP and ICS


